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Date: September 05, 2023 

 

BSE Limited  

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 

Dalal Street, 

MUMBAI – 400 001 

 

 

National Stock Exchange of India Limited 

“Exchange Plaza”, Bandra-Kurla Complex,  

Bandra (East), 

MUMBAI – 400 051 

 

Sub:  Notice convening 29
th

 Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Shareholders of Dhani Loans and 

Services Limited (the Company), along with Annual Report for the financial year 2022-23 

  

Ref:  

 

Disclosure under Regulation 53 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Require-

ments) Regulations, 2015, as amended (Listing Regulations) 

 

Dear Sirs, 

 

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Reg-

ulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), we wish to inform that Notice of the 29
th
 Annual General Meeting 

of the Shareholders of the Company, scheduled to be held on Wednesday, September 27, 2023 at 11:30 

A.M. (IST) (“AGM”), along with Annual Report for the financial year 2022-23 (“Annual Report”) are be-

ing mailed to the Shareholders, holding equity shares of the Company whose email IDs are registered with 

the Company/Depositories, in compliance with applicable MCA and SEBI Circulars (“Circulars”). Notice 

of 29
th
 AGM and Annual Report are also uploaded on the website of the Company viz. 

https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/ (Copy of the Notice and Annual Report are attached). 

  
 

Further, pursuant to the applicable Listing Regulations and Circulars, the Company’s Annual Report is 

also being sent to the Debenture Holders, holding debentures of the Company only in electronic mode, 

whose e-mail addresses are registered with Company/Depository Participant(s)/ Depository. 

 

This is for your information and record. 

 

Thanking you, 

 

Yours faithfully, 

 

For Dhani Loans and Services Limited 

 

 

 

 

Mansh Rustagi 

Company Secretary 

 

Encl.:a/a 

mailto:support@dhani.com
https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/


 

 
 

DHANI LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 

 (CIN: U74899DL1994PLC062407) 

Registered Office: 1/1 E, First Floor, East Patel Nagar, New Delhi-110008 

Email: support@dhani.com, Tel:  011- 41052775, Fax: 011- 42137986 

 

NOTICE 

 

NOTICE is hereby given that 29
th
 Annual General Meeting of the members of Dhani Loans and Services 

Limited will be held on Wednesday the September 27, 2023 at 11:30 A.M. (IST) at the Registered Office 

of the Company at 1/1 E, First Floor, East Patel Nagar, New Delhi-110008, to transact the following 

businesses: 

  

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company as at March 31, 2023 and 

the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon. 

 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Akshay Kumar Tiwary (DIN: 00366348), Non-Independent Non-

Executive director of the Company, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-

appointment.  

 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

 

3. To consider and if thought fit to pass the following resolution as a Ordinary Resolution, for the 

appointment of Ms. Sargam Kataria (DIN: 07133394) as Non-Independent Non-Executive director 

of the Company with effect from August 01, 2023: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and 161 and other applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory 

modifications or re-enactments thereof for the time being in force) and the Securities and Exchange Board 

of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) 

(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) and  

Articles of Association of the Company, consent of the Shareholders of the Company be and is hereby 

accorded to the appointment of Ms. Sargam Kataria (DIN: 07133394) as a Non-Independent Non-

Executive Director of the Company, with effect from August 01, 2023 AND that she shall be liable to 

retire by rotation.” 

 

4. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as a Special Resolution for payment 

of remuneration to Dr. Narendra Damodar Jadhav (DIN: 02435444), Independent Director of the 

Company in excess of the limits prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015: 
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 17(6)(ca) of the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) 

thereof for the time being in force), approval of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded 

for payment of remuneration to Dr. Narendra Damodar Jadhav (DIN: 02435444), Non-Executive, 

Independent Director of the Company, for the Financial Year 2022-23, details whereof are set out in the 

Explanatory Statement, being in excess of fifty percent of the total annual remuneration payable to all 

Non-Executive Directors of the Company for the said Financial Year. 

 



 

 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorised to do and perform all 

such acts, deeds, matters or things as may be considered necessary, appropriate, expedient or desirable to 

give effect to above Resolution.” 

 

5. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution, for approval 

to the amendment of Article of Association by insertion of Clause 27A for making provisions for the 

debenture trustees for appointment of Nominee Director on the Board of the Company as required 

by the SEBI Regulations: 
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 14, 71 and 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 

read with Rule 18(3)(e) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, Regulation 23(6) 

of the Securities Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 

Regulations, 2021 read with Regulation 15(1)(e) of the SEBI (Debenture Trustees) Regulations, 1993, as 

amended from time to time, and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies (Incorporation) 

Rules, 2014, and SEBI Regulations {including any statutory modifications(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof 

for the time being in force}, approval of the Members be and is hereby  accorded to insert clause 27A as 

mentioned herein below to the exiting  Articles of Association of the Company; 

 

27A(1): The Board of Directors may appoint any person as a director nominated by any financial 

institution in pursuance of the provisions of any law for the time being in force or of any agreement, or 

appointed by any Government, or any other person to represent its interest. 

 

27A(2): Debenture trustees, shall recommend and appoint and nominate a Director on the Board of 

Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Debenture Trustee Nominee Director”) in the 

event of: 

 

a) two consecutive defaults in payment of interest to the debenture holders, or 

b) default in creation of security for debentures, or  

c) default in redemption of debentures.  

 

The Nominee Director(s) appointed pursuant to clause 27A shall neither be liable to retire by rotation nor 

shall be required to hold any qualification shares. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and 

things and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution or 

to delegate  all or any of the powers to any officers(s)/authorized representative(s) of the Company.” 

 

     By Order of the Board of Directors 

              For Dhani Loans and Services Limited 

              

                           

              Sd/-        

Place: Gurugram                               Sanjeev Kashyap 

Date:  August 11, 2023             Whole-time Director & CEO 

                               DIN: 03405178 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

NOTES: 

 

1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 setting out 

material facts concerning the businesses under Item No. 3 to 5 of the accompanying Notice, is 

annexed hereto. 

 

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) is entitled to appoint 

a proxy to attend and on a poll to vote instead of himself and that a proxy need not be a member. 

The proxy form to be valid and effective should be lodged with the company at its Registered 

Office, duly completed and signed, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the AGM. 

 

3. A Proxy shall not have a right to speak at the AGM and shall not be entitled to vote except on a 

poll. 

 

4. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the AGM are 

requested to send to the Company, a certified copy of the board resolution authorizing their 

representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the AGM. 

 

5. All documents referred to in this Notice and other statutory registers are open for inspection by the 

Members on the date of the AGM at the venue of the meeting and also at the Registered Office of 

the Company between 10:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m on all working days except Saturdays, Sundays and 

national holidays, from the date hereof up to the date of the AGM. 

 

6. Members desiring any information relating to the financial statement of the Company are 

requested to write to the Company at the earliest, so as to enable the Board of Directors to keep the 

information ready at the AGM. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO 

SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 

The following Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) sets out 

all material facts relating to the businesses mentioned at item no. 3 to 5 of the accompanying Notice dated 

August 11, 2023. 

 

Resolution No. 3: Ordinary Resolution for appointment of Ms. Sargam Kataria (DIN: 07133394) as 

Non-Independent Non-Executive director of the Company with effect from August 01, 2023: 

 

The Members are informed that to ensure the compliance of SEBI Circular No. SEBI/LAD-

NRO/GN/2021/35 dated August 3, 2021, to have shareholders’ approval on the appointment of Directors 

within three months from their appointments, members approval is sought to the appointment of Ms. 

Sargam Kataria (DIN: 07133394) as Non-Independent Non- Executive Director who was appointed on the 

Board of the Company, with effect from i.e. August 01, 2023. 

 

Brief Profile of Ms. Sargam Kataria, Non-Independent Non-Executive Director is as under: 

 

Ms. Sargam Kataria aged 44, is a multifaceted and goal-oriented professional with valuable experience in 

Human Resource Management, skilled in HR Consulting, Coaching, Culture Change, Organizational 

Design and Management. She is a strong human resource development professional with Master’s in 

Business Administration (MBA) from FORE school of management and a Post Graduate in English 

Literature from Kurushetra University. Currently she is Sr. Vice President – Human Resources. As a 

focused Sr. Vice President in Human Resources, she has a track record of making positive changes in 

.organization’s culture, developing motivated staff, enhancing professionalism and leading HR activities to 

an increased organizational effectiveness. 

 

She does not hold any Equity Share of the Company. Ms. Kataria is not related to any other director or 

Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. 

 

The main terms and conditions of appointment of Ms. Sargam Kataria, Non-Independent Non-Executive 

Director of the Company, are as under: 

Nature Director liable to retire by rotation 

Designation Non-Independent Non-Executive Director 

Period N.A. 

Remuneration NIL 

Performance related incentive NIL 

Sitting Fees NIL 

No. of meetings 

of Board attended during FY 2022-

23  Board attended during FY 2022-23* Board attended during FY 2022-23* Board attended during FY 2022-23* 

0 

Directorships held in other 

Companies 

Mackennas Minerals Private Limited 

Agni Television Private Limited 

Indiabulls Life Insurance Company Limited 

Oliva Infrastructure Private Limited 

Artemisia Buildwell Private Limited 

Arizona Estates Private Limited 

Thymus Buildcon Private Limited 

Myrtus Infrastructure Private Limited 

Eternal Projects Private Limited 

Revati Infrastructure Private Limited 

Indiabulls Enterprises Limited 

Indiabulls General Insurance Limited 



 

 
 

Indiabulls Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 

Committee Details Member of Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Integrated 

Risk Management Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility 

Committee, Allotment Committee, Investment Committee, 

Management Committee and Product Design Committee of the 

Company and Chairperson of Asset Liability Management 

Committee of the Company. 

 

In other companies: 

Indiabulls Enterprises Limited: 

Member of Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration 

Committee and Management Committee. 

 

Indiabulls General Insurance Limited: 

Member of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

 

Indiabulls Life Insurance Company Limited: 

Member of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

 

Indiabulls Asset Reconstruction Company Limited: 

Member of Audit Committee and Nomination & Remuneration 

Committee 

 

 

The Board is of the view that it would further enhance the overall Board's effectiveness that Ms. Sargam 

Kataria, be appointed as Non-Independent Non- Executive Director of the Company w.e.f. August 01, 

2023. Accordingly, the Board recommends the resolution as set out at Item No. 3 of this Notice, for the 

approval by the shareholders, as an Ordinary resolution. 

 

Except the proposed appointee, in resolution set out at Item No. 3 of this Notice, proposing her 

appointment, none of the Promoters, Directors and Key Managerial Persons (KMPs) of the Company or 

any relatives of such Promoters, Directors or KMPs, are in any way concerned or interested, financially or 

otherwise, in the resolution. 

 

Item No. 4: Special Resolution, for payment of remuneration to Dr. Narendra Damodar Jadhav 

(DIN: 02435444), Independent Director of the Company in excess of the limits prescribed under the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 

 

As per Regulation 17(6)(ca) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), as amended, approval of 

shareholders by Special Resolution is required, in case the annual remuneration payable to a single Non-

Executive Director exceeds the limit of fifty per cent of the aggregate remuneration payable to all the Non-

Executive Directors. 

 

In terms of shareholders’ authorization dated December 15, 2020, payment of Remuneration/ Commission/ 

Incentive paid for FY 2022-23 to Dr. Narendra Damodar Jadhav (DIN: 02435444), an Independent 

Director of the Company exceeded the fifty per cent of the total remuneration paid to all the Non-

Executive Directors for FY 2022-23.  

 

In view of the above, the Board of Directors of the Company recommends the Special Resolution at Item 

No. 4 of the accompanying Notice, for the approval of the Members of the Company. 

 



 

 
 

Except Dr. Narendra Damodar Jadhav, in resolution set out at Item No. 4 of this Notice, none of the 

Promoters, Directors and Key Managerial Persons (KMPs) of the Company or any relatives of such 

Promoters, Directors or KMPs, are in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the 

resolution. 

 

Item No. 5: Special Resolution, for amendment in Article of Association by insertion of Clause 27A 

for making provisions for the debenture trustees for appointment of Nominee Directors on the 

Board of the Company as required by the SEBI Regulations: 
 

The proposed amendment in the Articles of Association of the Company is a statutory requirement 

following SEBI’s (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) (Amendment) Regulations, 2023 – 

amended on February 2, 2023. 

 

Regulation 23(6) of the SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non- Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021, as 

amended vide the SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) (Amendment) Regulations, 2023 

and read with Regulation 15(1)(e) of SEBI (Debenture Trustees) Regulations, 1993, as amended, requires 

that the companies issuing debentures shall incorporate suitable provisions in their Articles of Association 

(“AOA”) to cast obligation on their Board of Directors to appoint the person nominated by their Debenture 

Trustees (“DT”) as a Director in the event of default as per the terms of agreement. The Company has its 

Non- Convertible Debentures (“NCDs”) issued on public issue basis and are listed at the Stock Exchanges. 

 

The proposed amendment, as regulatorily required by SEBI’s (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible 

Securities) (Amendment) Regulations, 2023 – amended on February 2, 2023, enables the Company’s 

Board of Directors to appoint any person as a director nominated by any financial institution in pursuance 

of the provisions of any law for the time being in force or of any agreement, or appointed by any 

Government, or any other person to represent its interest. 

 

Accordingly, SEBI’s (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) (Amendment) Regulations, 2023 – 

amended on February 2, 2023, requires the Company to amend its AOA by inserting a clause enabling the 

appointment of a person nominated by its DT as a Director in the event of prescribed default(s). The right 

to appoint the Debenture Trustee Nominee Director shall be exercised by the debenture trustees as per the 

statutory guidelines as may be applicable from time to time. This amendment requirement is to be 

complied with by the debt issuers on or before September 30, 2023 and accordingly, amendments are 

required to be made in the existing AOA. The Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on 

August 11, 2023, approved the amendment in the AOA and granted its consent to insert a clause for 

enabling appointment of a person nominated by its DT as a Director in the event of prescribed default(s). 

The Amendment would be subject to the approval of the Members by way of a Special Resolution. As per 

the provisions of Section 14(1) of the Act, a Company may by way of a Special Resolution, alter its AOA 

subject to the provisions of the Act. 

 

The Board of Directors recommends the Special Resolution as set out in Item No. 5 of the Notice for 

approval of the Members. 

 

None of the Promoters/Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/their relatives are, in any 

way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out in Item No. 5 of the Notice. 

 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

              For Dhani Loans and Services Limited 

                                        

             Sd/-         

Place: Gurugram                               Sanjeev Kashyap 

Date:  August 11, 2023             Whole-time Director & CEO 

                               DIN: 03405178 

 



 

 
 

 

PROXY FORM  

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management 

and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

CIN: U74899DL1994PLC062407 

Name of the Company: Dhani Loans and Services Limited  

Registered Office: 1/1 E, First Floor, East Patel Nagar, New Delhi-110008 

 

Name of the Member (s): 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

Registered address:  

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

E-mail Id: _______________________________________________ 

Folio No. / DP ID No._______________________________  Client ID No. _________________________ 

 

I / We, being the member(s) of _________________________ Equity Shares of the above named Company, 

hereby appoint: 

 

1.  Name: ___________________________________________ E-mail ID:___________________________ 

 

Address: 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Signature:      or failing him / her 

 

2.  Name: ___________________________________________ E-mail ID:___________________________ 

 

Address: 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Signature:      or failing him / her 

 

3.  Name: ___________________________________________ E-mail ID:__________________________ 

 

Address: 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Signature:       

 

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the 29th Annual 

General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Wednesday September 27, 2023 at 11:30 A.M. at the 

registered office of the Company at 1/1 E, First Floor, East Patel Nagar, New Delhi-110008, and at any 

adjournment thereof, in respect of such resolutions set out in the Notice convening the meeting, as are 

indicated below: 

  

 

 

 



 

 
 

RESOLUTION 

NO. 

RESOLUTIONS 

ORDINARY BUSINESS 

1 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the 

Company as at March 31, 2023 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and 

Auditors thereon. 

2 6. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Akshay Kumar Tiwary (DIN: 

00366348), Non-Independent Non-Executive director of the Company, who 

retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.  

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

3 Ordinary Resolution, appointment of Ms. Sargam Kataria (DIN: 07133394) as 

Non-Independent Non-Executive director of the Company with effect from 

August 01, 2023. 

4 Special Resolution, for payment of remuneration to Dr. Narendra Damodar 

Jadhav (DIN: 02435444), Independent Director of the Company in excess of 

the limits prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

5 Special Resolution, for amendment in Article of Association by insertion of 

Clause 27A for making provisions for the debenture trustees for appointment 

of Nominee Director on the Board of the Company as required by the SEBI 

Regulations. 

 

 

Signed this ………………, 2023  

 

 

Signature of Shareholder: ______________________ 

 

Signature of Proxy Holder(s): ____________________ 

 

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the 

registered office of the Company, not later than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Affix 

Revenue 

Stamp of 

Re. 1/- 



 

 
 
 

DHANI LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 

(CIN: U74899DL1994PLC062407) 

Registered Office: 1/1 E, First Floor, East Patel Nagar, New Delhi-110008 

Email: support@dhani.com, Tel:  011-  41052775, Fax: 011- 42137986 

 

 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 

 

Folio No.*:_____________________   No. of Shares: ______________________ 

DP ID: ________________________   Client ID: ___________________________ 

 

Members or their Proxies are requested to present this Slip in accordance with the Specimen Signatures 

registered with the Company, at the entrance of the Meeting Hall, for admission. 

 

Name of the attending Member / Proxy _____________________________________________________ 

(in BLOCK LETTERS) 

 

I hereby record my presence at the 29
th
 Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Wednesday, 

September 27, 2023 at 11:30 A.M. at the registered office of the Company at 1/1 E, First Floor, East Patel 

Nagar, New Delhi-110008. 

 

 

________________________  ___________________________ 

Member’s Signatures       Proxy’s Signatures  

 

*Applicable for Members holding shares in Physical form. 
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DHANI LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 

 (CIN: U74899DL1994PLC062407) 

Registered Office: 1/1E, First Floor, East Patel Nagar, New Delhi West Delhi-110008 

Email: support@dhani.com, 011-  41052775, Fax: 011- 42137986 

 

DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 

Dear Shareholders, 

 

Your Directors are pleased to present the, the 29
th

 Annual Report of the Company together with 

the audited statements of accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. 

 

FINANCIAL RESULTS  

 

The financial highlights of the Company, for the financial year ended March 31, 2023, are as 

under: 

 

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 

Particulars 

For the Year 

ended March 

31, 2023 

Ind AS 

For the Year 

ended March 

31, 2022 

Ind AS 

Profit/(Loss) before Tax and Depreciation (15,128.48) (18,852.82) 

Less: Depreciation and amortization expense 5,136.95 6,004.97 

Profit/(Loss) before Tax (20,265.43) (24,857.79) 

Less: Provision for Tax (5,895.61) (6,430.14) 

Profit/(Loss) after Tax (14,369.82) (18,427.65) 

Profit/ (Loss) brought forward 306.75 19,406.96 

Add: Other comprehensive income 706.32 (377.18) 

Add: Transfer from share options outstanding account 628.33 1.29 

Add: Transfer from change in value of Loan Assets 21.17 504.15 

Amount available for appropriation (12,707.25) 1,107.57 

Appropriation   

Transfer to Reserve Fund (u/s 45 IC of the RBI Act 1934) - - 

Transfer to Capital redumption reserve - 800.82 

Transfer to change in value of Loan Assets - - 

Balance carried forward to Balance Sheet (12,707.25) 306.75 

 

BUSINESS REVIEW 

During the FY ended March 31, 2023, the Company incurred a Loss after Tax of Rs. 14,369.82 

lakhs.   

 

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS 

 

Dhani Loans and Services Limited (DLSL), is a non-deposit taking NBFC registered with the 

Reserve Bank of India and is a 100% subsidiary of Dhani Services Limited. 

 



DIVIDEND 

 

The Company has not declared any dividend during the financial year 2022-23. 

 

COMPLIANCES 

 

During the year under review your company has complied with all applicable regulations of the 

Reserve Bank of India. As per Non-Banking Finance Companies RBI Directions, as amended, 

the directors hereby report that the company did not accept any public deposits during the year 

and did not have any public deposits outstanding at the end of the year. 

 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide its notification no. SEBI/LAD-

NRO/GN/2021/47, issued on September 7, 2021, amended the Securities and Exchange Board 

of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing 

Regulations”) and made Regulations 15 to 27 applicable to the Debt Listed Companies having 

an outstanding value of listed Non-Convertible debt securities of Rs. 500 Crore and above i.e. 

High Value Debt Listed Entity (“HVDLE”), on comply or explain basis till March 31, 2024. 

Accordingly, Company has been classified as a HVDLE and the aforementioned Regulations 

have become applicable to the Company. 

 

The Company is an Unlisted Company as its shares are not listed on any stock exchange. 

However, as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is considered as a 

Listed Company as its Secured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures issued through 

Public issue are Listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited. Your 

Company has thus complied with/is in the process of complying with all the applicable 

Regulations of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

CHANGE OF REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY 

 

The Registered Office of the Company stands shifted from M-62 & 63, First Floor, Connaught 

Place, New Delhi - 110 001 to 1/1E, First Floor, East Patel Nagar, New Delhi - 110008 w.e.f. 

May 01, 2022. 

 

REGULATORY GUIDELINES  

 

Reserve Bank of India (RBI) is the regulator for Non-Banking Financial Companies. In 

accordance with this, the Company is in compliance with all regulations pertaining to 

Accounting Standards, Prudential norms for asset classification, income recognition, 

provisioning, capital adequacy and credit ratings. 

 

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

 

During the Financial Year 2022-23, Ms. Ritu Kapoor Puri (DIN: 09559548), was appointed as 

an Additional Director designated as whole-time director and Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company w.e.f. April 4, 2022, Mr. Akhil Gupta (DIN: 09285050) was appointed as an 

Additional Director designated as Non-Executive director of the Company w.e.f. April 26, 

2022, Mr. Vipin Chaudhary (DIN: 09588893) was appointed as an Additional Director 

designated as Non-Executive director of the Company w.e.f. July 01, 2022, Mr. Akshay Kumar 

Tiwary (DIN: 00366348) was appointed as an Additional Director designated as Non-

Executive director of the Company w.e.f. November 28, 2022 and Mr. Sanjeev Kashyap (DIN: 

03405178) appointed as Additional Director designated as Whole time Director & CEO of the 

Company w.e.f January 01, 2023.  
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Further, Mr. Amit Ajit Gandhi (DIN: 07606699) and Ms. Sargam Kataria (DIN: 07133394) 

were appointed as Additional Directors designated as Non-Excutive Directors of the Company 

w.e.f April 05, 2023 and August 01, 2023 respectively.  

 

Thereafter, the appointments of Ms. Ritu Kapoor Puri (DIN: 09559548), Mr. Akhil Gupta 

(DIN: 09285050) and Mr. Vipin Chaudhary (DIN: 09588893), were approved by the 

shareholders of the Company at their Extra ordinary General Meeting held on July 02, 2022 

and appointment of Mr. Akshay Kumar Tiwary (DIN: 00366348) and Mr. Sanjeev Kashyap 

(DIN: 03405178) were approved by the shareholders of the Company at their Extra ordinary 

General Meeting held on February 20, 2023. Further, appointment of Mr. Amit Ajit Gandhi 

(DIN: 07606699) was approved by the shareholders of the Company at their Extra ordinary 

General Meeting held on May 24, 2022  and they all are liable to retire by rotation. 

 

During the financial year 2022-23, Ms. Preetinder Virk (DIN: 02398827), Mr. Ajit Kumar 

Mittal (DIN: 02698115), Mr. Nafees Ahmed (DIN: 03496241), Mr. Vipin Chaudhary (DIN: 

09588893), ceased to be Non-Executive Directors of the Company with effect from April 4, 

2022, April 26, 2022, July 1, 2022 and November 28, 2022 respectively  and Mr. Pinank Jayant 

Shah (DIN: 07859798) ceased to be as Executive Director & CEO of the Company with 

effective from January 01, 2023. The Board has placed on record its appreciation for their 

contributions during their tenure on the Board. 

 

Further, Mr. Akhil Gupta (DIN: 09285050) ceased to be Non-Executive Director and Ms. Ritu 

Kapoor Puri (DIN: 09559548) ceased to be Executive Diretcor of the Company w.e.f April 05, 

2023 and July 31, 2023 respectively. The Board has placed on records its appreciation for their 

contribution during their tenure as Directors on the Board. 

 

Furthermore, Brig. Labh Singh Sitara (Retd.) (DIN: 01724648) Non-Executive Independent 

Director  was appointed  as Chairman of the Company with effect from March 06, 2023 

 

In compliance with the applicable provisions, Mr. Akshay Kumar Tiwary (DIN: 00366348), 

Non-Executive Director, is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of 

the Company and being eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment. Ms. Sargam Kataria 

being an Additional Director, holds office up to the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting of 

the Company. The Board recommends the appointment of Ms. Sargam Kataria as a Non-

Executive Director, liable to retire by rotation, at the ensuing AGM of the Company. 

 

All the Independent Directors of the Company have given declaration that they meet the 

criteria of independence laid down under Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act 2013 along 

with Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. In 

terms of Regulation 25(8) of SEBI Listing Regulations, they have also confirmed that they are 

not aware of any circumstance or situation which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that 

could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties. The brief resume of the Directors 

proposed to be appointed/ reappointed, nature of their expertise in specific functional areas, 

terms of appointment, names of companies in which they hold directorships, memberships/ 

chairmanships of Board Committees, along with names of listed entities from which they have 

resigned in the past three years, are provided in the Notice convening the Twenty Nineth 

Annual General Meeting of the Company. 

 

The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors of the Company possess requisite 

qualifications, experience and expertise and that they hold the highest standards of integrity. In 

terms of Section 150 of the Act read with the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of 
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Directors) Rules, 2014, the Independent Directors of the Company have registered themselves 

with the data bank of Independent Directors created and maintained by the Indian Institute of 

Corporate Affairs, Manesar. 

 

Mr. Sanjeev Kashyap (DIN: 03405178), Whole Time Director & CEO, Mr. Rajeev Lochan 

Agrawal, Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Mr. Manish Rustagi, Company Secretary (CS), 

are the KMPs of the Company. 

 

RATING  

 

As on March 31, 2023, Dhani Loans and Services Limited [DLSL] has Long term credit rating 

of BWR A+ (CWD) rating from Brickwork Ratings, IVR A (CWD) rating from Infomerics 

Valuation and Rating & CARE BB+ (Stable) rating from CARE Ratings. 

 

SHARE CAPITAL  

During the Financial Year 2022-23 there was no change in the share capital of the Company 

and The paid up equity share capital of the Company as on March 31, 2023, was Rs. 

61,18,80,000/- comprising of 6,11,88,000 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each. 

 

DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES 

 

As on March 31, 2023, 99.99% of the shareholding of the Company is in Demat mode. 

 

BORROWINGS 

 

The Company primarily sources funds through Term Loans, Non-Convertible Debentures 

(NCDs) and Securitisation. The outstanding debt (as per Ind AS) as on March 31, 2023 was Rs. 

39,292.15 Lakh (Including accrued interest) as compared to Rs. 1,72,252.52 Lakh (Including 

accrued interest) as on March 31, 2022.  

 

NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES  

 

During the year under review, the Company through Public Issue has raised Rs. 9,576.48 

lakh by issue of Secured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures (“NCDs”) of face value of 

INR 1,000/- each (“NCDs”). The Company has redeemed total NCDs amounting to Rs. 

32,019.33 lakh during the year under review. As on March 31, 2023 total outstanding NCDs 

were amounting to Rs.  lakh  29,961.67 through public issue and no debenture was issued on 

Private placement basis. 

 

These NCDs are listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited.  

 

ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE 

 

(i) Registered Office: 

1/1 E, First Floor,  

East Pate Nagar,  

New Delhi-110008Email: support@dhani.com 

Tel: 011-  41052775, Fax: 011- 42137986 

Website: www.dhaniloansandservices.com  

 

(ii) Corporate Office: 

http://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/


One International Centre (Formerly IFC), 

Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road, 

Mumbai – 400 013 

 
 

DEBENTURE TRUSTEES  

 

(I) IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited  

  17, R. Kamani Marg, Ballard Estate,  

  Mumbai – 400 001 

  Tel: 022 40807000 

  Fax: 022 66311776 

  Email: itsl@idbitrustee.com    

     Website: www.idbitrustee.co   

 

(II) Beacon Trusteeship Limited 

4 C&D, Siddhivinayak Chambers,  

Opp. MIG Cricket Club, Gandhi Nagar, 

Bandra (East), Mumbai- 400 051 

Telephone No: 022 2655 8759  

Email: contact@beacontrustee.co.in  

Website: www.beacontrustee.co.in 

 

REGISTRAR & TRANSFER AGENT 

 

KFIN Technologies Limited  

(formerly known as KFin Fintech Private Limited)   

Selenium, Tower B,  

Plot No – 31 & 32, Financial District,  

Nanakramguda, Serilingampally, Hyderabad  

Rangareddi – 500 032, Telangana, India 

Telephone No.: +91 40 6716 2222 

Facsimile No.: +91 40 2343 1551 

Email: dhaniloans.ncdipo@kfintech.com 

 

PUBLIC DEPOSITS 

 

Being a Non Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company, your Company has not accepted 

any deposits from the public under Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 

(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 during the year under review. 

 

AUDITORS 

 

(a) Statutory Auditors 

 

The shareholders of the Company have appointed M/s HEM Sandeep & Co, Chartered 

Accountants (Firm Registration No. 009907N) as statutory auditor of the Company in 27
th

 

Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on August 13, 2021, for a period of 3 (three) consecutive 

years to hold office from the conclusion of the 27
th

 to 30
th

 AGM of the Company. In terms of 

applicable regulatory provisions, M/s HEM Sandeep & Co, Chartered Accountants have 

confirmed that they are eligible to hold the office of Statutory Auditors of the Company for FY 

2023-24. 
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Management response on the qualification as mentioned in the Auditor’s report on standalone 

and consolidated Financial Statements of the Company as at March 31, 2023, forming part of 

this Annual Report is as under: 

 

“The Reserve Bank of India issued a communication to the industry dated 20 June 2022 which 

impacted one of the Company’s products/services offered to its customers. Considering the 

exceptional circumstances which arose on account of the impact of the above RBI 

communication, the Company on an exceptional and conservative basis had created a provision 

for impairment losses on financial instruments of Rs.72,961.20 lakhs(net of deferred tax) from 

the outstanding balance in the securities premium account. Also, there is no resultant impact on 

the carrying value of the total equity, assets and liabilities of the Company due to this 

exceptional treatment.” 

The Notes to the Accounts referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self – explanatory and 

therefore do not call for any further explanation. No frauds have been reported by the Auditors 

of the Company in terms of Section 143(12) of the Act.  

(b) Secretarial Auditors & Secretarial Audit Report 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made 

thereunder, the Company has appointed M/s Say & Associates (formerly known as M/s A. K. 

Kuchhal & Co.), a firm of Company Secretaries in practice as its Secretarial Auditors, to 

conduct the secretarial audit of the Company, for the Financial Year 2022-23. The Company 

has provided all assistance, facilities, documents, records and clarifications etc. to the 

Secretarial Auditors for conducting their audit. The Secretarial Audi Report and Secretarial 

Compliance Report for the Financial Year 2022-23, are annexed as Annexure 1 & Annexure 

1A respectively, forming part of these Reports. The Reports are self-explanatory and therefore 

do not call for any further explanation. 

 

The Secretarial Audit Report of material subsidiary companies, namely, Transerv Limited and 

Indiabulls Distribution Limited are annexed as “Annexure 2” and “Annexure 3”, respectively. 

 

(c) Cost Records 

 

The Company is not required to prepare and maintain cost records pursuant to Section 148(1) 

of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

(d) Internal Auditor  
 
The Company has appointed M/s SGSJ & Associates as an internal auditor of the Company in 

place of  M/s SARH and Associates, Chartered Accountants. 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

 

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the SEBI LODR Regulations, Corporate Governance Practices 

followed by the Company, together with a certificate from a practicing Company Secretary 

confirming compliance, is presented in a separate section forming part of this Annual Report. 

 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

 

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations 

obtained by them, your Directors make the following statement in terms of Section 134 of the 

Companies Act, 2013: 

 



a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023, 

the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation 

relating to material departures, if any; 

b) that such accounting policies as mentioned in the Notes to the Financial Statements have 

been selected and applied consistently and judgments and estimates have been made that 

are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 

Company, as at March 31, 2023 and the profit and loss of the company for the year ended 

on that date; 

c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the 

assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d) that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis; and 

e) that proper internal financial controls were in place and that such financial controls were 

adequate and were operating effectively. 

f) that systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place 

and were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 134 AND SECTION 197 OF THE 

COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH THE RELEVANT RULES 

 

The information required to be disclosed pursuant to Section 134 and Section 197 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, read with the relevant rules (to the extent applicable), not elsewhere 

mentioned in this Report, are as under: 

 

ANNUAL RETURN 

 

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the 

Annual Return as on March 31, 2023 is available on the Company’s website at 

https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/policies/Form_MGT_7_DLSL_2023_w.pdf. 

 
 

BOARD MEETINGS  

 

During the FY 2022-23, 6 (Six) Board Meetings were convened by the Board of Directors of 

the Company.  

 

LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 

 

During the FY 2022-23, in terms of the provisions of Section 186 (1) of the Companies Act, 

2013, the Company did not make any investments through more than two layers of investment 

companies. Further, the Company, being a non-banking finance company and registered with 

the Reserve Bank of India, loans given, guarantees provided and investments made by it, were 

not covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 

As required under Regulation 23(1) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has 

formulated a ‘Policy on Related Party Transactions’ for proper conduct and documentation of 

all related party transactions. The same is available on the website of the Company at 

https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/policies-and-codes. The Company also has in place a 

Framework on Related Party Transactions for the purpose of identification, monitoring and 

approving of such transactions as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI 

https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/policies/Form_MGT_7_DLSL_2023_w.pdf


Listing Regulations. Further, the disclosure as per Regulation 53(f) read with Schedule V of 

SEBI Listing Regulations is attached as Annexure-4. 

 

All the related party transactions, entered into by the Company, during the financial year, were 

in its ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. There are no materially 

significant related party transactions entered by the Company with its Promoters, Key 

Management Personnel or other designated persons which may have potential conflict with the 

interest of the Company at large. None of the transactions with related parties fall under the 

scope of Section 188(1) of the Act and hence the informations on transactions with related 

parties pursuant to Section 134(3) (h) of the Act read with rule 8(2) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules 2014 required to be given in the prescribed form AOC -2 are not applicable.  

 

Further, Your Directors wish to draw attention of the members to Notes 45 to the financial 

statement which sets out related party disclosures. 

 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

 

The Company has an elaborate system of internal controls commensurate with the size, scale 

and complexity of its operations; it also covers areas like financial reporting, fraud control, 

compliance with applicable laws and regulations etc. Regular internal audits are conducted to 

check and to ensure that responsibilities are discharged effectively.  

 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS 

 

Apart from the information provided/disclosures made elsewhere in the Boards’ Report 

including Annexures thereof, there are no material changes and commitments affecting the 

financial position of the Company, occurred between the date of end of the financial year of the 

Company i.e. March 31, 2023 till date of this Report. 

 

Further, no significant and material orders were passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals, 

impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future. 

 

During the financial year 2022-23 the Company paid a fine of Rs. 7.60 lacs to RBI for the 

penalty imposed by RBI on the Company w.r.t non-compliance of the “Reserve Bank of India 

[Know Your Customer (KYC)] Directions, 2016”.  

 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 

EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

 

The Company being a Non-Banking Finance Company is not required to use much of energy 

and technology absorption, however in compliance of Section 134(3) read with Rule – 8 of 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the necessary reporting with regard to conservation of 

energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo, is an under: 

 

A. Conservation of Energy  

 

The Company uses energy for its office equipment such as computers, lighting and utilities at 

its work premises. As an ongoing process the following measures are undertaken to conserve 

energy: 

 

a)  Implementation of viable energy saving proposals. 

b)  Installation of automatic power controllers to save maximum charges and energy. 



c)  Awareness and training sessions, at regular intervals, to concerned operational personnel on 

opportunities of energy conservation and their benefits. 

 

B. Technology Absorption 

 

The Company is investing in cutting edge technologies to upgrade its infrastructure set up and 

innovative technical solutions, thereby increasing customer delight & employee efficiency. 

Next Generation Business Intelligence & analytics tool have been implemented to ensure that 

while data continues to grow, decision makers gets answers faster than ever for timely & 

critical level decision making. The Company has implemented best of the breed applications to 

manage and automate its business processes to achieve higher efficiency, data integrity and 

data security. It has helped it in implementing best business practices and shorter time to 

market new schemes, products and customer services.  The Company has taken major 

initiatives for improved employee experience and efficient Human resource management, by 

implementing world class HRMS application and empowering them by providing mobile 

platform to manage their work while on the go.  

 

The Company’s investment in technology has improved customer services, reduced operational 

cost and development of new business opportunities.  

 

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 

 

The Company has incurred expense Rs. 512.42 Lakh in foreign currency during the year under 

review.  

 

BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has formulated 

robust business Risk Management framework to identify and evaluate business risks and 

opportunities. This framework seeks to create transparency, minimize adverse impact on its 

business objectives and enhance its competitive advantage. It defines the risk management 

approach across the Company including the documentation and reporting. At present, the 

Company has not identified any element of risk which may threaten its existence.  

 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

 

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, disclosures on 

Managerial Remuneration are provided in “Annexure - 5” forming part of this Report. 

 

Further, the information of employees of the Company, employed by the Company through the 

year or part thereof, as required to be made in terms of Rule 5(2) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is given in Annexure 

5A. 

 

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR NON – EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 

 

Non - Executive Directors are familiarized with their roles, rights and responsibilities in the 

Company as well as with the nature of industry and business model of the Company through 

presentations about the Company’s strategy, business model, product and service offerings, 

customers & shareholders profile, financial details, human resources, technology, facilities, 

internal controls and risk management, their roles, rights and responsibilities in the Company. 



 

The Board is also periodically briefed on the various changes, if any, in the regulations 

governing the conduct of Non – Executive Directors including independent directors. The 

details of the familiarization programmes have been hosted on the website of the Company and 

link provided in the Report on Corporate Governance forming part of this Report. 

 

SUBSIDIARIES/ ASSOCIATES/ JOINT VENTURES 

 

As on March 31, 2023, the Company have four subsidiaries: 

 

1. Transerv Limited (Formerly Transerv Private Limited) 

2. Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited (IIAL) 

3. Indiabulls Distribution Services Limited (IDSL) 

4. Indiabulls Alternate Investments Limited, as a subsidiary of IDSL  

 

The statement pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 of the Companies Act 

2013, read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in the prescribed Form AOC - 1 

relating to Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiary has 

been attached to this report and forms part of the financial statements as “Annexure 6”. 

 

During the year, Transerv Limited and Indiabulls Distributaion Services Limited were material 

subsidiaries of the Company, as per SEBI LODR Regulations. 

 

The Company is in compliance with Regulation 24A of the SEBI LODR Regulations. The 

Company’s material subsidiaries undergo Secretarial Audit and copies of Secretarial Audit 

Reports of these subsidiaries are given in Annexure 2 and Annexure 3 which are self-

explanatory 

 

NAMES OF THE COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE 

SUBSIDIARIES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

 

During the FY 2022-23, no new company became or ceased to be subsidiary or joint venture or 

associate of the Company.  

 

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

 

The Board has constituted Committees with specific terms of reference to focus on specific 

areas. These include Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Risk 

Management Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and Stakeholders 

Relationship Committee. 

 

The details with respect to composition, powers, roles, terms of reference, etc. of Committees 

constituted under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations are given in the 

Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Annual Report. 

 

POLICY FOR SELECTION AND APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AND   

REMUNERATION POLICY 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has adopted a charter which, inter alia, deals 

with the manner of selection of the Board of Directors, senior management and their 

compensation. This Policy is accordingly derived from the said Charter. 
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a. The incumbent for the positions of Directors/KMP and/or at senior management, shall 

be the persons of high integrity, possesses relevant expertise, experience and leadership 

qualities, required for the position.  

b. The Directors shall be of high integrity, with relevant expertise and experience so as to 

have the diverse Board with Directors having expertise in the fields of finance, banking, 

regulatory, taxation, law, governance and general management. 

c. In case of appointment of Independent Directors, the independent nature of the 

proposed appointee vis-a-vis the Company, shall be ensured. 

d. The N&R Committee shall consider qualification, experience, expertise of the 

incumbent, and shall also ensure that such other criteria with regard to age and other 

qualification etc., as laid down under the Companies Act, 2013 or other applicable laws 

are fulfilled, before recommending to the Board, for their appointment as Directors. 

e. In case of re-appointment, the Board shall take into consideration, the performance 

evaluation of the Director and his engagement level. 

 

Company’s Remuneration Policy is market led, based on the fundamental principles of 

payment for performance, for potential and for growth. It also takes into account the 

competitive circumstances of the business, so as to attract and retain quality talent and leverage 

performance significantly. The N&R Committee recommends the remuneration payable to the 

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel, for approval by Board of Directors of the Company, 

subject to the approval of its shareholders, wherever necessary.  

 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE 

 

Since during immediately preceding three financial years, the Company had average net losses, 

therefore the Company was not required to contribute any amount towards CSR activities for 

the FY 2022-23, in terms of the applicable provisions. and the details given in “Annexure 7”, 

forming part of this Report.  

 

The CSR policy of the Company is available on the Company’s website 

https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/csr-policy. 

 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

 

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, Corporate Governance 

Practices followed by the Company, together with a certificate from a practicing Company 

Secretary confirming compliance, is presented in a separate section forming part of this Annual 

Report. 

 
BOARD EVALUATION 
 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Board reassessed the framework, 

methodology and criteria for evaluating the performance of the Board as a whole, including 

Board committee(s), as well as performance of each director(s)/Chairman. The existing 

parameters includes effectiveness of the Board and its committees, decision making process, 

Directors/ members participation, governance, independence, quality and content of agenda 

papers, team work, frequency of meetings, discussions at meetings, corporate culture, 

contribution, role of the Chairman and management of conflict of interest. On the basis of these 

parameters, the NRC had reviewed at length the performance of each director individually and 

expressed satisfaction on the process of evaluation and the performance of each Director. The 

performance evaluation of the Board as a whole and its committees as well as the performance 
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of each director individually, including the Chairman was carried out by the entire Board of 

Directors. The performance evaluation of the Chairman, Executive Directors and Non-

Executive Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors in their meeting held on 

March 10, 2023. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process. 

 

NUMBER OF CASES FILED, IF ANY, AND THEIR DISPOSAL UNDER SECTION 22 

OF THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 

PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

 

The Company has zero tolerance towards any action on the part of any of its officials, which 

may fall under the ambit of ‘Sexual Harassment’ at workplace, and is fully committed to 

uphold and maintain the dignity of every woman employee of the Company. The Company’s 

Sexual Harassment Policy provides for protection against sexual harassment of women at 

workplace and for prevention and redressal of such complaints. 

 

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:  

 

i. number of complaints filed during the financial year - Nil 

ii. number of complaints disposed of during the financial year - Nil 

iii. number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year- Nil 

 

Further, the Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal 

Complaints Committee (ICC) under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Work place 

(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) 

has been set up to redress complaints received, if any, regarding sexual harassment. 

  

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

 

The Board of Directors state that the Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial 

Standards (SS-1 and SS-2) respectively relating to Meetings of the Board, its Committees and 

the General Meetings as issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

 

DETAILS OF PROCEEDINGS UNDER INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPCY CODE, 

2016 

 

During the year, no applications were made or case was pending under the Insolvency and 

Bankruptcy Code, 2016 except the following: 

 

i) The case bearing no. CP (IB) – 64/2023 titled as “Phonepe Private Limited Versus 

Dhani Loans and Services Limited” was filed against Dhani Loans and Services 

Limited on 20/01/2023 and registered on 30/01/2023. The matter is currently pending 

adjudication and listed on 22/08/2023. In terms of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 

2016 (“IBC”), Dhani Loans and Services Limited being a NBFC (Non-Banking 

Financial Company) is exempted from any action under the IBC. Thus, this petition is 

not maintainable. 

 

ii) The case bearing no. CP(IB) – 559/2022 titled as “Nimitaya Infotech Pvt. Ltd. Versus 

Dhani Loans and Services Limited” was filed against Dhani Loans and Services 

Limited on 13/07/2022 and registered on 25/07/2022. Nimitaya Infotech Pvt. Ltd. 

thereafter had withdrawn the said petition accordingly the petition was dismissed as 

withdrawn on 27/09/2022. 



 

DETAILS OF VALUATION DONE WITH RESPECT TO LOANS TAKEN FROM 

BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTION 

 

During the year, there was no instance of one-time settlement with Banks or Financial 

Institutions.  

 

VIGIL MECHANISM 

 

The Company is committed to adhere to the highest standards of ethical, moral and legal 

conduct of its business operations. To maintain these standards, the Company has implemented 

the Vigil Mechanism Policy (‘’the Policy’’), to provide an avenue for employees to report 

matters without the risk of subsequent victimization, discrimination or disadvantage. The 

Policy applies to all employees working for the Company. Pursuant to the Policy, the whistle 

blowers can raise concerns relating to matters such as breach of Company’s Code of Conduct, 

fraud, bribery, corruption, employee misconduct, illegality, misappropriation of Company’s 

funds / assets etc. A whistle-blowing or reporting mechanism, as set out in the Policy, invites 

all employees to act responsibly to uphold the reputation of the Company and its subsidiaries. 

The Policy aims to ensure that serious concerns are properly raised and addressed and are 

recognized as an enabling factor in administering good governance practices.- The details of 

the Whistle Blower Policy are available on the website of the Company at 

https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/whistleblower-policy. 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 

Your Company has been able to operate efficiently because of the culture of professionalism, 

creativity, integrity and continuous improvement in all functional areas and the efficient 

utilization of all its resources for sustainable and profitable growth. Your Directors wish to 
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the Company, for their support during the year. 

 

                                                       For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

                          

 

                                                                 Sd/-                                                  Sd/- 

                                                       Sanjeev Kashyap                 Akshay Kumar Tiwary  
Date: August 11, 2023                   Whole-time Director & CEO      Director 

Place: Gurugram                    DIN : 03405178                         DIN : 00366348 

https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/whistleblower-policy


 

 

Annexure 1 

Form No. MR-3 
 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31
ST

 MARCH, 2023 

 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To, 

The Members, 

DHANI LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 

CIN: U74899DL1994PLC062407 

1/1E, First Floor, East Patel Nagar,  

New Delhi-110008 

 

 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 

and the adherence to good corporate practices by Dhani Loans and Services Limited 

(hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided 

us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and 

expressing our opinion thereon. 

 

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 

filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the 

Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 

Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit 

period covering the financial year ended 31
st
 March, 2023 complied with the statutory 

provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and 

compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 

hereinafter: 

 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31
st
 March, 2023 according to 

the provisions (including amendments) of the following to the extent these are applicable: 

 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made thereunder; 

 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under; 

 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder 

to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 

Commercial Borrowings; 

 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 

 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of  Shares and  

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011  

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

2015; 



 

 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018; 

(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat 

Equity) Regulations, 2021;  

(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 

Regulations, 2021; 

(f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and 

Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013; 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 

2018; 

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015;  

(j)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;  

(k) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 

2021;  

 

(vi) The Management has identified the following other laws, as applicable: 

 

(a) All the Rules, Regulations, Directions, Guidelines and Circulars including Master 

Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company – Systematically Important Non-Deposit taking 

Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, issued by the 

Reserve Bank of India, as amended from time to time; 

(b) Credit Information Companies (Regulation) Act, 2005 and Rules. 

(c) Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002 and the Rules and Guidelines notified there 

under by SEBI / Regulatory Authorities. 

 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of Secretarial Standards with 

regard to Meeting of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by The 

Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

 

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the 

Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above subject to the 

observations as spelt out in Statutory Auditor’s report and notes to accounts.  

 

We further report that: 

 

i. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 

Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Women Director and Independent Directors. 

The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period 

under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

 

ii. Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board and its Committee Meetings 

and agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at well in advance for meetings other than 

those held at shorter notice, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information 

and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at 

the meeting. 

 

iii. All the decisions of the Board and Committees thereof were carried out with the consent of 

all the directors present in the meetings. 

 

We further report that based on review of compliance mechanism established by the 

Company, we are of the opinion that there are adequate systems and processes in place in the 

https://www.sebi.gov.in/legal/regulations/aug-2021/securities-and-exchange-board-of-india-share-based-employee-benefits-and-sweat-equity-regulations-2021_51889.html
https://www.sebi.gov.in/legal/regulations/aug-2021/securities-and-exchange-board-of-india-share-based-employee-benefits-and-sweat-equity-regulations-2021_51889.html
https://www.sebi.gov.in/legal/regulations/apr-2022/securities-and-exchange-board-of-india-issue-and-listing-of-non-convertible-securities-regulations-2021-last-amended-on-april-11-2022-_58126.html
https://www.sebi.gov.in/legal/regulations/apr-2022/securities-and-exchange-board-of-india-issue-and-listing-of-non-convertible-securities-regulations-2021-last-amended-on-april-11-2022-_58126.html


 

 

Company which is commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor 

and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 

We further report that during the audit period the Company has:  

 

(a) allotted 9,57,648 Secured, Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures of face value of Rs. 

1000 at par amounting to Rs. 95,76,48,000 on May 17, 2022 through public issue which were 

listed on National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. and BSE Limited. 

 

(b) shifted its Registered Office from ‘M - 62 & 63, First Floor, Connaught Place, New Delhi 

- 110001’ to ‘1/1 E, First Floor, East Patel Nagar, New Delhi-110008’ w.e.f. May 1, 2022. 

 

(c) shifted its corporate office and books of accounts from Plot No 448-451, Udyog Vihar, 

Phase –V, Gurugram, Haryana-122016’ to ‘Plot No. 108, 5th Floor, IT Park, Udyog Vihar, 

Phase - I, Gurugram, Haryana – 122016 w.e.f. November 15, 2022. 

 

(d) paid a fine of Rs. 7.60 lacs to RBI for the penalty imposed by RBI on the Company w.r.t 

non-compliance of the "Reserve Bank of India [Know Your Customer (KYC)] Directions, 

2016” on account of deficiencies found in the categorization of the 34 lacs customers into the 

High, Medium and Low for the FY 2019-20. 

 

(e) clarified its stand w.r.t observations of NSE and BSE on few filings under Regulation 

52(7)/(7A), 57(1) and 60(2) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and waiting for comments of 

the Stock Exchanges. No fines have been paid in the Financial year under review on said 

observations. 

 

(f) taken requisite approvals of its members in the extra-ordinary general meeting held on 

May 24, 2023 under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

(g) Updated various policies of the Company as per applicable regulatory provisions. 

 

      

 

For Say & Associates,  

Company Secretaries 

 

 

Sd/- 

Deepak Rawat 

Partner 

M. No.: A33210 

C. P. No.: 12241 

FRN.: P2011UP000800 

PR No: 3362/2023 

UDIN: A033210E000750401 

 

Place: Noida 

Date: 05/08/2023 

 

 

Note: This report is to be read with letter of even date by the Secretarial Auditors, which is 

annexed and forms an integral part of this report. 

 

 



 

 

 

ANNEXURE TO SECRETARIAL AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 

To, 

The Members, 

DHANI LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED 

CIN: U74899DL1994PLC062407 

1/1E, First Floor, East Patel Nagar,  

New Delhi-110008 

 

 

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date, for the financial year 2022-23 is to be read along 

with this letter. 

 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 

reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The 

verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial 

records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis 

for our opinion. 

 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 

Accounts of the company and for which we relied on the report of statutory auditor. 

 

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the 

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification 

of procedures on test basis. 

 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company 

nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of 

the company. 

 

For Say & Associates,  

Company Secretaries 

 

 

Sd/- 

Deepak Rawat 

Partner 

M. No.: A33210 

C. P. No.: 12241 

FRN.: P2011UP000800 

PR No: 3362/2023 

UDIN: A033210E000750401 

 

Place: Noida 

Date: 05/08/2023 



 

 

 

 

Annexure 1A 

 

SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT OF   

“DHANI LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED”  

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31
ST

 MARCH, 2023 

 

 

The provisions of regulation 16 to 27 of Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 have been made 

applicable to high value debt listed entities and accordingly, We, M/s Say & Associates, 

Practicing Company Secretaries (formerly known as M/s A.K. Kuchhal & Co., Company 

Secretaries), have examined: 

 

(a) all the documents and records made available to us and explanation provided by Dhani 

Loans and Services Limited (“the Listed Entity”), 

(b)  the filings/ submissions made by the Listed Entity to the stock exchanges,  

(c)  website of the Listed Entity,  

(d) any other document/ filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to make 

this certification, 

 

for the year ended 31
st
 March, 2023 (“Review Period”) in respect of compliance with the 

provisions of:  

 

(a) the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) and the 

Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder; and 

(b) the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”), rules made thereunder and 

the Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder by the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (“SEBI”);  

 

The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, 

have been examined, include:-  

 

a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015;  

b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the Company during the review period) 

c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not applicable to the Company during the review 

period) 

d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; 

(Not applicable on the Company during the review period) 

e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat 

Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable on the Company during the review period) 

f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations 2008;  

g) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible 

Securities) Regulations, 2021;  

h) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

2015;  

i) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depository Participant) Regulations, 2018;  

 



 

 

and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder;  

 

and based on above examination, We hereby report that, during the Review Period the 

compliance status of the listed entity is appended as below: 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Particulars Compliance 

Status 

(Yes/No/ 

NA) 

Observations 

/Remarks by 

PCS 

1. Secretarial Standards: 

 

The compliances of the listed entity are in 

accordance with the applicable Secretarial Standards 

(SS) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries 

India (ICSI), as notified by the Central Government 

under section 118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 

and mandatorily applicable. 

Yes None 

2.    Adoption and timely updation of the Policies: 

 

 All applicable policies under SEBI Regulations 

are adopted with the approval of board of 

directors of the listed entities 

 All the policies are in conformity with SEBI 

Regulations and have been reviewed & updated 

on time, as per the 

regulations/circulars/guidelines issued by SEBI 

Yes None  

3.    Maintenance and disclosures on Website: 

 

 The Listed entity is maintaining a functional 

website 

 

 Timely dissemination of the documents/ 

information under a separate section on the 

website 

 

 Web-links provided in annual corporate 

governance reports under Regulation 27(2) are 

accurate and specific which re-directs to the 

relevant document(s)/ section of the website 

 

 

Yes 

 

Yes 

 

 

N.A. 

 

 

None 

 

None 

 

 

In terms of NSE 

Circular No. 

NSE/CML/2021/10 

dated September 30, 

2021 and BSE Circular 

No. 20220107-16 dated 

January 7, 2022, 

Annexure II of 

Compliance Report on 

Corporate Governance 

as prescribed by SEBI 

vide Circular No. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD-

2/P/CIR/2021/567 

dated May 31, 2021 is 

not applicable on the 

Listed Entity, being a 

High Value Debt Listed 

Company. 



 

 

 

 

4. Disqualification of Director: 

 

None of the Director(s) of the Company is/ are 

disqualified under Section 164 of Companies Act, 

2013 as confirmed by the listed entity. 

Yes None  

5. Details related to Subsidiaries of listed entities 

have 

been examined w.r.t.: 

 

(a) Identification of material subsidiary 

companies 

 

 

 

(b) Disclosure requirement of material as well as 

            other subsidiaries 

 

 

 

 

NA 

 

 

 

         Yes 

 

 

 

There is no material 

subsidiaries of the 

Listed Entity. 

 

None 

6. Preservation of Documents: 

The listed entity is preserving and maintaining 

records as prescribed under SEBI Regulations and 

disposal of records as per Policy of Preservation 

of Documents and Archival policy prescribed under 

SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015. 

Yes 

 

None 

 

7. Performance Evaluation: 

The listed entity has conducted performance 

evaluation of the Board, Independent Directors and 

the Committees at the start of every financial 

year/during the financial year as prescribed in SEBI 

Regulations. 

Yes None 

8. Related Party Transactions: 

(a) The listed entity has obtained prior approval of 

Audit Committee for all related party 

transactions; or 

(b) The listed entity has provided detailed reasons 

along with confirmation whether the 

transactions were subsequently approved/ 

ratified/ rejected by the Audit Committee, in 

case no prior approval has been obtained. 

Yes 

 

 

 

None  

9. Disclosure of events or information: 

The listed entity has provided all the required 

disclosure(s) under Regulation 30/51 along with 

Schedule III of SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015 

within the time limits prescribed thereunder. 

Yes Being a high value debt 

listed entity Regulation 

30 along with Schedule 

III of SEBI LODR 

Regulations, 2015 is not 

applicable on the 

Company.  However 

the listed entity has 

provided required 

disclosure(s) under 



 

 

applicable Regulation 

51 read with Part B of 

Schedule-III. 

10. Prohibition of Insider Trading: 

The listed entity is in compliance with Regulation 

3(5) & 3(6) SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 2015. 

Yes None 

11. Actions taken by SEBI or Stock Exchange(s), if 

any: 

No action(s) has been taken against the listed 

entity/ its promoters/ directors/ subsidiaries either 

by SEBI or by Stock Exchanges (including under 

the Standard Operating Procedures issued by SEBI 

through various circulars) under SEBI Regulations 

and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder.  

No The Company has 

clarified its stand w.r.t 

observations of NSE 

and BSE on few 

filings under 

Regulation 52(7)/(7A), 

57(1) and 60(2) of 

SEBI LODR 

Regulations, 2015 and 

waiting for comments 

of the Stock 

Exchanges. No fines 

have been paid in the 

Financial year under 

review on said 

observations. 

12. Additional Non-compliances, if any: 

No additional non-compliance observed for any 

SEBI regulation/circular/guidance note etc. 

NA No additional non-

compliance observed 

for any SEBI 

regulation/ circular/ 

guidance note etc.  

 



 

 

 

 

Compliances related to resignation of statutory auditors from listed entities and their material 

subsidiaries as per SEBI Circular CIR/CFD/CMD1/114/2019 dated 18th October, 2019: 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Particulars Compliance 

Status 

(Yes/No/ NA) 

Observations 

/Remarks by 

PCS* 

1. Compliances with the following conditions while appointing/re-appointing an auditor 

 i. If the auditor has resigned within 45 days 

from the end of a quarter of a financial year, the 

auditor before such resignation, has issued the 

limited review/ audit report for such quarter; 

or 

ii. If the auditor has resigned after 45 days from 

the end of a quarter of a financial year, the 

auditor before such resignation, has issued the 

limited review/ audit report for such quarter 

as well as the next quarter; or 

iii. If the auditor has signed the limited review/ 

audit report for the first three quarters of a 

financial year, the auditor before such 

resignation, has issued the limited review/ 

audit report for the last quarter of such 

financial year as well as the audit  report for 

such financial year. 

NA No Statutory 

Auditors  has 

resigned during 

the Review 

Period 

2. Other conditions relating to resignation of statutory auditor 

 i. Reporting of concerns by Auditor with respect 

to the listed entity/its material subsidiary to the 

Audit Committee: 

a. In case of any concern with the 

management of the listed entity/material 

subsidiary such as non-availability of 

information / non-cooperation by the 

management which has hampered the 

audit process, the auditor has 

approached the Chairman of the Audit 

Committee of the listed entity and the 

Audit Committee shall receive such 

concern directly and immediately 

without specifically waiting for the 

quarterly Audit Committee meetings. 

b. In case the auditor proposes to resign, 

all concerns with respect to the 

proposed resignation, along with 

relevant documents has been brought to 

the notice of the Audit Committee. In 

cases where the proposed resignation is 

due to non-receipt of information / 

explanation from the company, the 

NA No Statutory 

Auditors has 

resigned during 

the Review 

Period 



 

 

auditor has informed the Audit 

Committee the details of information 

/ explanation sought and not provided 

by the management, as applicable. 

c. The Audit Committee / Board of 

Directors, as the case may be, 

deliberated on the matter on receipt of 

such information from the auditor 

relating to the proposal to resign as 

mentioned above and communicate its 

views to the management and the 

auditor. 

ii. Disclaimer in case of non-receipt of 

information: 

The auditor has provided an appropriate 

disclaimer in its audit report, which is in 

accordance with the Standards of 

Auditing as specified by ICAI / NFRA, 

in case where the listed entity/ its 

material subsidiary has not provided 

information as required by the auditor. 

3. The listed entity / its material subsidiary has 

obtained information from the Auditor upon 

resignation, in the format as specified in Annexure- 

A in SEBI Circular CIR/ CFD/CMD1/114/2019 

dated 18th October, 2019. 

NA No Statutory 

Auditors has 

resigned during 

the Review 

Period. 



 

 

 

 

(a) The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, except in respect of matters 

specified below: 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Compliance 

Requiremen

t 

(Regulation

s/ circulars/ 

guidelines 

including 

specific 

clause) 

Regulation/ 

Circular No. 

Deviation

s 

Actio

n 

Take

n by 

Type 

of 

Action 

Details 

of 

Violati

on 

Fine Amount Observations/ 

Remarks of the 

Practicing 

Company 

Secretary 

Management 

Response 

Remarks 

None 

 



 

 

(b) The Listed Entity has taken the following actions to comply with the observations made in previous reports:  

 

i) Observations made in previous Annual Secretarial Compliance report by Practicing Company Secretary for Financial year ended 31.03.2022: 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Complianc

e 

Requireme

nt 

(Regulatio

ns/ 

circulars/ 

guidelines 

including 

specific 

clause) 

Regulati

on/ 

Circular 

No. 

Deviations Actio

n 

Take

n by 

Type of 

Action 

Details of 

Violation 

Fine Amount Observations/ 

Remarks of the 

Practicing  

Company 

Secretary 

Management 

Response 

Remarks 

1 Regulation 

54(2) of  

SEBI 

(LODR ) 

Regulations, 

2015 

54(2)  Non-

disclosure of 

extent and 

nature of 

security 

created and 

maintained 

with respect 

to secured 

listed NCDs 

in the 

financial 

statements 

NSE & 

BSE 

Penalt

y  

Non-

disclosure of 

extent and 

nature of 

security 

created and 

maintained 

with respect 

to secured 

listed NCDs 

in the 

financial 

statements 

Rs. 27,140/- 

(Including GST) 

each by NSE & 

BSE. 

The Company has 

taken corrective 

steps and 

deposited the 

penalty.  

Company had paid 

the said penalty to 

Exchanges. 

The listed entity 

has taken 

sufficient steps to 

address the 

concerns raised/ 

observations in 

previous Annual 

Secretarial 

Compliance 

reports.  

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

Assumptions & Limitation of scope and Review:  

 

1. Compliance of the applicable laws and ensuring the authenticity of documents and information furnished, are the responsibilities of the management of 

the listed entity.  

 

2. Our responsibility is to certify based upon our examination of relevant documents and information. This is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion.  

 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial Records and Books of Accounts of the listed entity.  

 

4. This Report is solely for the intended purpose of compliance in terms of Regulation 24A (2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the listed entity nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the 

management has conducted the affairs of the listed entity. 

 

 

For Say & Associates,  

Company Secretaries 

(Formerly known as M/s A. K. Kuchhal & Co., 

Company Secretaries) 

 

 

Sd/- 

Deepak Rawat 

Partner 

M. No.: A33210 

C. P. No.: 12241 

FRN.: P2011UP000800 

PR No: 3362/2023 

UDIN: A033210E000339661 

 

Place: Noida 

Date: 19/05/2023 



 

Annexure 2 

 

FORM-MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

For the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2023 

[Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To, 

The Members,  

TRANSERV LIMITED 

CIN: U93090MH2010PLC211328 

Unit No. 401 & 402, One International Center,  

4th Floor, Tower-1, S.B. Marg, Elphinstone Road(W)  

Mumbai Mumbai City MH 400013 

 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 

adherence to good corporate practices by Transerv Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). 

Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the 

corporate conducts /statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

 

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute  books, forms and returns filed and 

other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its 

officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report 

that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31
st 

March, 2023 complied with the statutory provisions listed here under and also that the Company has 

proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to 

the reporting made hereinafter: 

 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 

by the Company for the financial year ended on 31
st 

March, 2023 according to the provisions (including 

amendments) of the following to the extent these are applicable: 

 

i. The Companies Act, 2013(the Act) and the rules made thereunder. 

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;  

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Byelaws framed thereunder;  

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act,1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 

Borrowings;  

v. The Regulations prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,1992 (‘SEBI 

Act’) viz.:-  
 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; 



b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018; 

d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 

Regulations, 2021 

e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 

Regulations, 2021; 

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and 

Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013; 

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018; 

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015; 

j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

k) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021. 

vi. and other applicable laws like:  

 All the Rules, Regulations, Directions, Guidelines and Circulars including Master Direction on 

prepaid payment instruments (PPIs), issued by the Reserve Bank of India, as amended from 

time to time; 

 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of Secretarial Standards issued by the 

Institute of Company Secretaries of India w.r.t. Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS - 1) and General 

Meeting (SS – 2). 

 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 
 

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 

Executive Director and Non-Executive Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of 

Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the 

provisions of the Act. 
 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 

agenda were sent well in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 

clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 
 

All decisions of the Board and Committees were carried with requisite majority. 
 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with 

the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 

regulations and guidelines.  

 

For Sukesh & Co. 



(Company Secretaries) 

 

Sd/- 

(Sukesh Saini) 

FCS No. : F11688 

COP No.: 12007  

UDIN:  F011688E000734949 

 

 

Place: Gurgaon 

Date: 03/08/2023 
 

  
 

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an 

integral part of this report. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



‘Annexure A’ 

 

To, 

The Members, 

TRANSERV LIMITED 

Unit No. 401 & 402, One International Center,  

4th Floor, Tower-1, S.B. Marg, Elphinstone Road(W)  

Mumbai Mumbai City MH 400013 

  

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.  

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 

about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to 

ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, 

we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of 

the Company.  

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules 

and regulations and happening of events etc.  

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is 

the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test 

basis.  

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 

efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.  

7. The maximum liability of our firm under the secretarial audit in respect of the aggregate of all claims 

shall not exceed the fee charged by us.  

 

For Sukesh & Co. 

(Company Secretaries) 

 

Sd/- 

(Sukesh Saini) 

FCS No. : F11688 

COP No.: 12007  

UDIN:  F011688E000734949 

Place: Gurgaon 

Date: 03/08/2023 
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Annexure 3 

                 FORM-MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31
ST 

MARCH, 2023 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 

The Members,  

INDIABULLS DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED 

CIN: U74999DL2009PLC191143 

1/1E, First Floor, East Patel Nagar,  

New Delhi -110008 

 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 

adherence to good corporate practices by Indiabulls Distribution Services Limited (hereinafter called 

“the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 

evaluating the corporate conducts /statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

 

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute  books, forms and returns filed and 

other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its 

officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report 

that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31
st 

March, 2023 complied with the statutory provisions listed here under and also that the Company has 

proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to 

the reporting made hereinafter: 

 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 

by the Company for the financial year ended on 31
st 

March, 2023 according to the provisions (including 

amendments) of the following to the extent these are applicable: 

 

i. The Companies Act, 2013(the Act) and the rules made thereunder. 

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;  

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Byelaws framed thereunder;  

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act,1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 

Borrowings;  

v. The Regulations prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,1992 (‘SEBI 

Act’) viz.:-  

 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018; 
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d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 

Regulations, 2021 

e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 

Regulations, 2021; 

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and 

Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013; 

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018; 

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015; 

j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

k) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021. 

vi. There are no other Sector specific laws which are specifically applicable to the Company. 

 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of Secretarial Standards issued by the 

Institute of Company Secretaries of India w.r.t. Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS - 1) and General 

Meeting (SS – 2). 

 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above, if applicable. 

 

We further report that changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the 

period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 

agenda were sent well in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 

clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

All decisions of the Board and Committee were carried out with requisite majority. 

 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with 

the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 

regulations and guidelines.  

 

For Sukesh & Co. 

(Company Secretaries) 

 

Sd/- 

(Sukesh Saini) 

FCS No. : F11688 

COP No.: 12007  

UDIN:  F011688E000769962 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 09/08/2023 

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an 

integral part of this report. 
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‘Annexure A’ 

 

To, 

The Members, 

INDIABULLS DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED 

CIN: U74999DL2009PLC191143 

1/1E, First Floor, East Patel Nagar,  

New Delhi West Delhi-110008 

  

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.  

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was 

done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that 

the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 

Accounts of the Company.  

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of 

laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.  

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification 

of procedures on test basis.  

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 

of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 

Company.  

7. The maximum liability of our firm under the secretarial audit in respect of the aggregate of all 

claims shall not exceed the fee charged by us.  

  

For Sukesh & Co. 

(Company Secretaries) 

 

Sd/- 

(Sukesh Saini) 

FCS No. : F11688 

COP No.: 12007  

UDIN:  F011688E000769962 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 09/08/2023 

 



Annexure 4 
 

               
Figures in Rs. Lakh 

 

Particulars 

Holding company  Subsidiaries 

 For the 
year 

ended 
 31 March 

2023  

For the 
year 

ended 
 31 March 

2022 

 For the 
year 

ended 
 31 March 

2023  

For the year 
ended 

 31 March 
2022 

Loans and advances in the nature of 
loans to Subsidiaries: 

    (Maximum balance outstanding during the 
year): 

    
Transerv Limited 

  
- - 

                           
-    

                 
2,663.16  

Investment in the shares of 
subsidiaries: 

    
  

Indiabulls Distribution Services Limited - - 45,000.12 45,000.12 

Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited - 
 

35,550.00 35,550.00 

Transerv Limited - - 12,579.39 12,579.39 

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
 
 

Sd/- 

Sanjeev Kashyap 

DIN: 03405178 

Whole Time Director & Chief Executive Officer 



Annexure 5 

 

Disclosures on Managerial Remuneration 
 

Details of remuneration as required under Rule 5.1 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended, are as under – 

 

Ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees 

of the Company for the FY 2022-23 
 

Designation Ratio of remuneration to the median 

employees’ remuneration 

Whole time Director  & CEO 73.04:1 

 

The details of fee for attending Board meetings and other incentives, if any, paid to 

Independent and Non- Executive Directors have been disclosed in Corporate Governance 

Report, forming part of this Annual Report. 

 

No remuneration was paid to other Director(s) during the FY 2022-23 and hence, not forming 

part of this clause. 

 

Percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief 

Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in FY 2022-23 

 

Designation Increase in Remuneration (%) 

Whole time Director  & CEO 

 

 

Company Secretary  

NIL 

 

 

NIL 

 

No remuneration was paid to other Director(s) during the Financial Year 2022-23 hence not 

forming part of this clause. 

 

The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the FY 2022-23 

 

There has been a increase of 8.78% in the median remuneration of all the employees (including 

KMPs), in the FY 2022-23. 

 

Number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company. 

 

The Company had 5224 employees on its permanent rolls, as on March 31, 2023 

 

Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the 

managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile 

increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there 

are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration. 

 



There has been average percentile increase of 0.09% in the salaries of total employees other 

than the key managerial personnel in the FY 2022-23. While the average increase in the 

percentile remuneration of key managerial personnel is NIL . 

 

The Company follows prudent remuneration practices under the guidance of the Board and 

Nomination & Remuneration Committee. The Company’s approach to remuneration is 

intended to drive meritocracy and is linked to various parameters including its performance, 

growth, individual performance, peer comparison of other companies, within the framework of 

prudent Risk Management. 

 

There were no exceptional circumstances which warranted an increase in managerial 

remuneration, which was not justified, by the overall performance of the Company. 

 

 

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

 

 

 

                                                                                   

                     Sd/-                                                  Sd/- 

             Sanjeev Kashyap                   Akshay Kumar Tiwary 

Place: Gurugram                       Whole-time Director & CEO      Director 

Date: August 11, 2023               DIN: 03405178       DIN: 00366348 

 



 

 

 

 

 

Annexure  5A 

 

Dhani Loans and Services Limited  

 

DETAILS REGARDING REMUNERATION TO THE EMPLOYEES AS PER RULE 5(2) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATIONOF MANAGERIAL 

PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 

 

(A) Employed throughout the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for that year which, in the aggregate, was not less than One Crore and Two Lakh  rupees  

 

SL. 

No. 

Name Designation 

of the 

employee 

 

Remuneration 

received 

(Rs.) 

Nature of 

employment, 

whether 

contractual or 

otherwise 

 

Qualifications 

and experience 

of the employee 

 

Date of 

commenceme

nt of 

employment 

 

The age of 

such 

employee 

 

The last 

employment held 

by such employee 

before joining the 

company 

 

The percentage of 

equity shares held by 

the employee in the 

company within the 

meaning of 

clause (iii) of sub-

rule (2) above 

Whether any such 

employee is a 

relative of any 

director or manager 

of the company and 

if so, name of such 

director or manager 

1 Mr. Digvijay 

Kumar Singh 

Chief General 

Manager 
1,20,00,000 Permanent ME/M Tech 15-09-2021 

 

40 Innoviti Payments 

 

 

 

NA NA 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

(B) Employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for any part of that year, at a rate which, in the aggregate, was not less than eight lakh and fifty thousand 

rupees per month 

 

SL. 

No. 

Name Designation of 

the employee 

 

Remuneration 

received 

 

Nature of 

employment, 

whether 

contractual or 

otherwise 

 

Qualification

s and 

experience 

of the 

employee 

 

Date of 

commencement 

of employment 

 

The age 

of such 

employ

ee 

 

The last 

employment held by 

such employee 

before joining the 

company 

 

The percentage of 

equity shares held by 

the employee in the 

company within the 

meaning of 

clause (iii) of sub-

rule (2) above 

Whether any such 

employee is a relative 

of any director or 

manager of the 

company and if so, 

name of such director or 

manager 

1 

Mr. Amit Ajit 

Gandhi 

 

Business Head 

 

70,71,711 

 

 

Permanent 

 

 

 

PGDMA 

 

 

17-Apr-17 

 

 

47 

 

 

Indiabulls Housing 

Finance Ltd 

NA NA 

2 

Mr. Pinank Jayant 

Shah 

 

Chief Executive 

Officer 

1,27,30,150 

 

 

Permanent 

 

 

 

M M S 

 

 

19-Jun-17 

 

 

44 

 

 

Indiabulls Housing 

Finance Ltd 

NA NA 

3 

Mr. Suchit Subodh 

Mishra 

 

Chief 

Information 

Officer 

33,33,334 

 

 

Permanent 

 

 

 

MS 

 

 

08-Aug-21 

 

 

46 

 

 Hear.com 

NA NA 

4 

Mr. Gineesh 

George 

Senior General 

Manager 

28,58,337 

 

Permanent 

 

 

BE/B Tech 

 

13-Sep-21 

 

39 

 Adobe System 

NA NA 

5 

Mr. Neel Bhasin 

 

 

Senior Software 

Developer 

8,33,333.65 

 

 

Permanent 

 

 

 

BE/B Tech 

 

 

05-Jan-22 

 

 

32 

 

 Fancode 

NA NA 

6 

Mr. Ashwin Pal 

 

 

Senior 

Engineering 

Manager 

90,00,010 

 

 

Permanent 

 

 

 

B.TECH 

 

 

01-Jun-22 

 

 

30 

 

 

Dhani Healthcare 

Limited 

NA NA 

7 

Mr. Sandeep 

Kadam 

 

Head of IT 

 

 

2,50,00,000 

 

 

Permanent 

 

 

 

M.SC 

 

 

01-Jun-22 

 

 

41 

 

 

Dhani Healthcare 

Limited 

NA NA 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(C) Employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration in that year which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, is in excess of that drawn 

by the managing director or whole-time director or manager and holds by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, not less than two percent of the equity shares of the company 

 

SL.

No. 

Name Designation of 

the employee 

 

Remuner

ation 

received 

 

Nature of 

employment, 

whether 

contractual or 

otherwise 

 

Qualifications and 

experience of the 

employee 

 

Date of 

commencement 

of employment 

 

The age of 

such 

employee 

 

The last 

employment held 

by such employee 

before joining the 

company 

 

The percentage of 

equity shares held by 

the employee in the 

company within the 

meaning of 

clause (iii) of sub-

rule (2) above 

 

Whether any such employee 

is a relative of any director 

or manager of the company 

and if so, 

name of such director or 

manager 

N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

(D) The names of the top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn during the Financial Year 2022-23: 

 

w Nam 

e 

Designation of 

the employee 

 

Remuneration 

received 

 

Nature of 

employment, 

whether 

contractual 

or otherwise 

 

Qualifications 

and 

experience of 

the employee 

 

Date of 

commencement 

of employment 

 

The 

age 

of 

such 

emp

loye

e 

 

The last employment 

held by such 

employee before 

joining the company 

 

The percentage 

of equity shares 

held by the 

employee in the 

company within 

the meaning of 

clause (iii) of 

sub-rule (2) 

above 

Whether any such 

employee is a 

relative of any 

director or manager 

of the company and 

if so, 

name of such 

director or manager 

1 
Mr. Sandeep 

Kadam 

Head of IT 

   2,50,00,000  

Permanent 

M.SC 01-Jun-22 41 

Dhani Healthcare 

Limited 

NA NA 

2 

Mr. Pinank 

Jayant Shah 

Chief 

Executive 

Officer   1,27,30,150  

Permanent 

MMS 19-Jun-17 43 

Indiabulls Housing 

Finance Limited 

NA NA 

3 
Mr. Digvijay 

Kumar Singh VP Product   1,20,00,000  

Permanent 

ME/M Tech 15-Sep-21 40 Innoviti Payments 

NA NA 

4 

Mr. Rajagopalan 

Parthasarathy 

Senior 

Engineer 

Manager   1,00,00,008  

Permanent 

Msc 17-Nov-21 50 Wells Fargo 

NA NA 

5 
Mr. Rishabh 

Chhajer 

Senior Vice 

President      99,45,008 

Permanent 

B Tech 08-Nov-21 33 Gameskraft 

NA NA 

6 

Mr. Ashwin Pal 

Senior 

Engineering 

Manager      90,00,010 

Permanent 

B.TECH 01-Jun-22 30 

Dhani Healthcare 

Limited 

NA NA 

7 
Mr. Ankur 

Saxena 

Chief General 

Manager      90,00,000 

Permanent 

BE/B tech 06-Aug-21 39 TIMES INTERNET 

NA NA 

8 
Mr. Amit Ajit 

Gandhi Business Head      70,71,711 

Permanent 

MBA 17-Apr-17 47 

Indiabulls Housing 

Finance Limited 

NA NA 

9 
Mr. Sanjeev 

Kashyap 

Chief General 

Manager      68,98,349 

Permanent 

MBA 01-Nov-18 51 

Indiabulls Housing 

Finance Limited 

NA NA 

10 
Mr. Dharmesh 

Kishore 

Chief General 

Manager      62,50,000 

   Permanent 

MBA 01-Jun-22 46 

Dhani Healthcare 

Limited 

NA NA 

 

 

 

Notes: - 

1. Remuneration includes salary, bonus, incentive, house rent allowance, supplementary allowance, Transport allowance, Medical allowance, leave travel allowance, and other allowance paid in 

cash. 

2. Other Terms and Conditions: All appointments are/were in accordance with the terms and conditions as per applicable Rules and Policy of the Company 



(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakh unless stated otherwise)

Sr. No. Name of the Subsidiary Companies Date of 

acquisition of 

subsidiary

Year Reporting 

Currency

Share Capital Other equity 

(Surplus / 

(Deficit))

Total Assets 

excluding 

investments

Total 

Liabilities 
#

Investments Turnover Profit / (Loss) 

before 

Taxation

Provision for 

Taxation / (Tax 

Credit)

Profit / (Loss) 

after Taxation

Proposed 

Dividend 

(including 

Corporate 

Dividend Tax)

% of 

shareholding

1 Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited 20.03.2020 2022-23 ₹         35,550.00 (12,018.52)        23,728.01         196.53             -               2,003.56        438.04            (77.71)              515.75             -                   100.00%

2 Indiabulls Distribution Services Limited 26.03.2020 2022-23 ₹                35.82 45,220.62         55,307.29         10,555.85        505.00          6,770.79        (1,119.30)        (1,202.15)         82.85               -                   86.04%

3 Indiabulls Alternate Investments Limited * 26.03.2020 2022-23 ₹              505.00 419.86              738.74              10.95               197.07          109.58           1.56                2.06                 (0.50)                -                   86.04%

4 TranServ Limited 01.04.2019 2022-23 ₹              647.92 2,066.07           24,538.91         21,824.92        -               4,048.89        (1,762.54)        309.64             (2,072.18)         -                   100.00%

# Total liabilities exclude share capital and other equity

* Wholly owned subsidiary of Indiabulls Distribution Services Limited

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Sanjeev Kashyap Akshay Kumar Tiwary Rajeev Lochan Agrawal Manish Rustagi

DIN: 03405178 DIN: 00366348 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Whole Time Director & Chief Executive Officer Director

Place: Gurugram

Date: 26 May 2023

Part A: Subsidiaries

[Form AOC-1: Pursuant to first proviso to Sub-section (3) of Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Part "B" Associates - Not applicable

Annexure-6

Annexure: Statement containing the salient features of the financial statements of subsidiaries / associate companies / joint ventures



Annexure 7 

 Annual Report on CSR Activities for Financial Year Ending March 31, 2023 

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

The Company focuses its CSR efforts on such areas, where it could provide maximum

benefits to the society at large. These are, improving awareness of communities towards

nutrition, sanitation, education, health, animal welfare and rural development etc. The

Company will continue to engage with stakeholders including experts, NGOs, professional

bodies / forums and the government and would take up such CSR activities in line with the

government’s intent, which are important for the society at large. The Company may also

undertake such other CSR projects, where societal needs are high or in special situations

(natural disasters etc.)

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

Sl. No. Name of 

Director 

Designation / Nature 

of Directorship 

Number of 

meetings of CSR 

Committee held 

during the year 

Number of meetings 

of CSR Committee 

attended during the 

year 

1 Brig. Labh 

Singh Sitara 

(Retd.) $ 

Member (Independent 

Director) 

1 1 

Mr. Ajit 

Kumar Mittal* 

Member (Non-

Executive Director) 

1 0 

3 Mr. Pinank 

Jayant Shah## 

Member (Executive 

Director) 

1 1 

4 Ms. Preetinder 

Virk# 

Member (Non-

Executive Director) 

1 0 

5 Mr. Akhil 

Gupta** 
Member (Non-

Executive Director) 

1 1 

6 Ms. Ritu 

Kapoor Puri
@

 
Member (Executive 

Director) 

1 1 

7 Mr. Akshay 

Kumar Tiwary^  
Chairman (Executive 

Director) 

1 0 

#Ms. Preetinder Virk ceased to be the member of the Committee w.e.f. April 04, 2022. 

@Ms. Ritu Kapoor Puri was appointed as member of the company w.e.f April 04, 2022. 

*Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal ceased to be the member of the committee w.e.f. April 26, 2022.

**Mr. Akhil Gupta was appointed as member of the committee w.e.f. April 26, 2022 and ceased to be the member of the 

committee w.e.f. January 01, 2023. 

##Mr. Pinank Jayant Shah ceased to be the member of the committee w.e.f. January 01, 2023. 

^Mr. Akshay Kumar Tiwary was appointed Chairman of the committee w.e.f. 01 January, 2023. 

$Brig. Labh Singh Sitara (Retd.) ceased to be Chairman and continued as member w.e.f. 01 January, 2023. 

2



  

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR 

projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company.  

Composition of the CSR committee shared above and is available on the Company’s website at 

https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/policies/Board_Directors_and_Committees_of_DLSL.

pdf and Policy of the Company is available at https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/csr-

policy  

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of 

sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 

2014, if applicable (attach the report). Not Applicable 

  

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the 

Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required 

for set off for the financial year, if any 

 

Sl. No. Financial 

Year 

Amount available for set-off 

from preceding financial 

years (in Rs) 

Amount required to be set-

off for the financial year, if 

any (in Rs) 

1 2019-20 Nil Nil 

2 2020-21 Nil Nil 

3 2021-22 Nil Nil 

 Total   

  

6.  Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5). Rs. (99,48,68,497). 

7.  (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)- Rs.    

      (1,99,00,000). 

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the 

previous financial years- Nil 

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any-Nil 

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c). NA 

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 

 

Total 

Amount 

Spent for the 

Financial 

Year. (in 

Rs.) 

Amount Unspent (in Rs.) 

Total Amount transferred 

to Unspent CSR Account 

as per section 135(6). 

Amount transferred to any fund 

specified under Schedule VII as per 

second proviso to section 135(5). 

 Amount. Date of 

transfer. 

Name of the 

Fund 

Amount. Date of 

transfer. 

NA Nil N.A N.A Nil N.A 

https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/policies/Board_Directors_and_Committees_of_DLSL.pdf
https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/policies/Board_Directors_and_Committees_of_DLSL.pdf
https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/csr-policy
https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/csr-policy


  

  

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) 

Sl. 

No. 

Name of 

the 

Project. 

Item 

from 

the 

list of 

activi

ties 

in 

Sche

dule 

VII 

to 

the 

Act. 

Loc

al 

are

a 

(Ye

s/N

o). 

Location of 

the project. 

Pr

oje

ct 

du

rat

ion

. 

Amount 

allocated 

for the 

project (in 

Rs.). 

Amount 

spent in 

the current 

financial 

Year (in 

Rs.). 

Amount 

transfer

red to 

Unspent 

CSR 

Account 

for the 

project 

as per 

Section 

135(6) 

(in Rs.). 

Mode of 

Impleme

ntation - 

Direct 

(Yes/No)

. 

Mode of 

Implementation - 

Through 

Implementing 

Agency 

Stat

e. 

District. Name CSR 

Registra

tion 

number. 

1. NA 

 Total                                                                   NA 

  

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial 

year: 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) 

Sl. 

No. 

Name 

of the 

Project 

Item from 

the list of 

activities in 

schedule 

VII to the 

Act. 

Local 

area 

(Yes/ 

No). 

Location of 

the project. 

Amount 

spent for 

the project 

(in Rs.). 

Mode of 

implementation 

- Direct 

(Yes/No). 

Mode of 

implementation - 

Through 

implementing 

agency. 

State. District. Name. CSR 

registration 

number. 

1. N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A 

2. N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A 

3. N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A 

 Total    N.A    

  

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads:  Nil 

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil 

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): NA 

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any 



  

Sl. 

No. 

Particular Amount (in Rs.) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the 

company as per section 135(5) 

                  NIL 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year                   NIL 

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-

(i)] 

0 

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or 

programmes or activities of the previous 

financial years, if any 

0 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding 

financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 

0 

  

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: 

  

Sl. 

No. 

Preceding 

Financial 

Year. 

Amount 

transferred 

to Unspent 

CSR 

Account 

under 

section 135 

(6) (in Rs.) 

Amount 

spent in the 

reporting 

Financial 

Year (in 

Rs.). 

Amount transferred to 

any fund specified 

under Schedule VII as 

per section 135(6), if 

any. 

Amount 

remaining 

to be spent 

in 

succeeding 

financial 

years. (in 

Rs.) 

Name 

of the 

Fund 

Amount 

(in Rs). 

Date of 

transfer. 

1. 2019-20 N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A 

2. 2020-21 N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A 

3. 2021-22 N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A 

 Total N.A N.A  N.A  N.A 

  

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the 

preceding financial year(s): 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) 

Sl. 

No. 

Project 

ID. 

Name 

of the 

Project. 

Financial 

Year in 

which the 

project was 

commenced. 

Project 

duration. 

Total 

amount 

allocated 

for the 

project 

(in Rs.). 

Amount 

spent on 

the 

project 

in the 

reporting 

Financial 

Year (in 

Rs). 

Cumulative 

amount 

spent at the 

end of 

reporting 

Financial 

Year. (in 

Rs.) 

Status of 

the project 

- 

Completed 

/Ongoing. 

1 N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A 



  

2 N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A 

3 N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A 

 Total    N.A N.A N.A  

  

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the 

asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details): 

No Assets Created during the Year. 

      (a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s). N.A 

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset. N.A 

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such 

capital asset is registered, their address etc. N.A 

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete 

address and location of the capital asset). N.A 

    

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average 

net profit as per section 135(5). N.A 

For Dhani Loans and Services Limited  

 

 

                                                                                   

Sd/-                                                  Sd/- 

Sanjeev Kashyap                   Akshay Kumar Tiwary 

Place: Gurugram         Whole-time Director & CEO      Chairman – CSR Committee 

Date: August 11, 2023 DIN: 03405178                 DIN: 00366348 

    

 

  

  

  



 

 

 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

THE COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE 

 

The fundamental principle of Corporate Governance is achieving sustained growth ethically and in 

the best interest of the Company (“Dhani Loans”) and all its stakeholders. It is not a mere compliance 

of laws, rules and regulations but a commitment to values, best management practices and adherence 

to the highest ethical principles in all its dealings to achieve the objects of the Company, enhance 

stakeholders value and discharge its social responsibility.  

 

The Company is committed towards achieving the highest standards of Corporate Governance by 

emphasizing on a corporate culture of integrity, fairness, transparency, accountability and 

responsibility for efficient and ethical conduct of its business. The Company believes that good 

governance brings sustained corporate growth and long-term benefits for all its stakeholders. 

 

Dhani Loans engages in a credible and transparent manner with all its stakeholders and clearly 

communicates its long-term business strategy. All its actions are governed by its values and 

principles, which are reinforced at all levels of the Company. This is the path to consistent, 

competitive, profitable and responsible growth, and for creating long-term value for its shareholders, 

its employees and business partners.  

 

The Board of Directors (‘the Board’) is responsible for and is committed to sound principles of 

Corporate Governance of the Company and plays a crucial role in overseeing how the management 

serves the short and long-term interests of stakeholders. As you aware that the COVID-19 pandemic 

has caused an unprecedented health and economic crisis across the globe due to which the severity of 

its impact on business activity is still evolving. Your Company is nimble-footed and continuously 

evolving its strategies to deal with the emergent challenges with the help of depth experience of 

management team.  

 

Dhani Loans keeps its governance practices under continuous review and benchmark itself to best 

practices. This belief is reflected in its governance practices, under which it strives to maintain an 

effective, informed and independent Board. 

 

The Company is in compliance with the Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company and the 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI LODR), to the 

extent applicable. 

 

1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

 

(A) Composition and size of the Board 

 

The Company’s Board is constituted of highly experienced professionals from diverse backgrounds. 

The Board’s constitution is in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI LODR Regulations to 

the extent applicable, and Listing Agreement executed by the Company with the Stock Exchanges  

and is in accordance with the highest standards of Corporate Governance, which ensures an 

appropriate mix of Executive/Non-Executive, Woman Director and Independent Directors with 

demonstrated skill sets and relevant experience in diverse fields viz. finance, banking, regulatory and 

public policy etc., thereby bringing an enabling environment for value creation through sustainable 

business growth. 

 

Presently, as on the date of this report, the Board consists of six directors, of which one is Executive 

Director and three are Non-Executive, Non Independent Directors. The remaining two directors are, 

namely, Brig. Labh Singh Sitara(Retd.), bachelor in economics from the Punjab University (Re-

appointed as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f. September 14, 2022) and Dr. Narendra 

Damodar Jadhav (former Member Planning Commission) (appointed as Non-Executive Independent 



 

 

Director w.e.f. November 17, 2020).  

 

No Director is related to any other Director on the Board. The Board comprises directors that bring a 

wide range of skills, expertise and experience which enhance overall board effectiveness. 

 

The Board has identified skills and domain expertize required by the Directors of the Company which 

includes Banking & Finance, Business Strategy, Corporate Governance, Corporate Social 

Responsibility, Human Resources, Marketing, Operations and Process Optimization, Policy Making, 

Regulatory Compliances, Risk Management, Stakeholder Management, Taxation and Treasury. The 

Directors of the Company have mapped their skills based on the board skill matrix. 

 

Details of Directors, directorship in listed companies, number of directorships held by them in other 

companies and also the number of their memberships and chairmanships on various Board 

Committees, including skill sets/ expertise/competencies/practical knowledge, as on March 31, 2023, 

are as under: 



 

 

 

Sl. 

No 

Name of the 

Director 

Nature of 

Office 

Special Knowledge/ 

Practical 

Experience/ Skills/ 

Expertise/ 

Competencies 

Names of the 

other listed 

entities where 

the person is a 

director 

Category of 

directorship 

in other 

listed 

entities 

where the 

person is a 

director 

No. of 

Director

ships in 

other 

Listed 

Compa

nies 

No. of 

Directors

hip in 

other 

Companie

s* 

No. of Memberships/ 

Chairmanships in 

Board Committees of 

various companies 

(including this 

Company)** 

Members

hips 

Chairm

anships 

1 Mr.  Sanjeev  

Kashyap 

(DIN: 03405178 

) 

Whole-

time 

Director 

& CEO  

Banking and 

Finance, 

Business Strategy, 

Risk Management, 

Treasury, 

Marketing, 

Corporate 

Governance, 

Corporate 

Social 

Responsibility, 

Stakeholder 

Management, 

Operations and 

Process 

Optimization 

NIL NA 

 

 

 

 

0 1 0 0 

2 Ms.  Ritu Kapoor 

Puri 

(DIN:  09559548 

) 

Executive 

Director 

Banking and 

Finance, 

Business Strategy, 

Risk Management, 

Treasury, 

Marketing, 

Corporate 

Governance, 

Corporate 

Social 

Responsibility, 

Stakeholder 

Management, 

Operations and 

Process 

Optimization 

NIL NA 0 1 1 NIL 

3 Mr.  Akhil  

Gupta 

(DIN:  09285050 

) 

Non-

Independe

nt Non-

Executive 

Director 

Banking and 

Finance, Business 

Strategy, 

Regulatory / legal 

& 

Risk Management, 

Treasury, 

Foreign Exchange 

Recovery, 

Marketing, 

Corporate 

Governance, 

Corporate Social 

Responsibility, 

Stakeholder 

Management, 

Operations and 

Process 

Optimization 

NIL 

 

NA 0 0 NIL NIL 

 

 

4 

 

 

 

Mr.  Akshay 

Kumar Tiwary 

(DIN: 

00366348o) 

Non-

Independe

nt Non-

Executive 

Director 

Banking and 

Finance, Business 

Strategy, 

Regulatory / legal 

& 

Risk Management, 

Treasury, 

Foreign Exchange 

Recovery, 

Marketing, 

Corporate 

Governance, 

Corporate Social 

NIL NA 0 19 NIL NIL 



 

 

 
Note1: Ms. Preetinder Virk (DIN: 02398827), Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal (DIN: 02698115), Mr. Nafees Ahmed (DIN: 03496241), 

Mr. Vipin Chaudhary (DIN: 09588893), ceased to be Non-Executive Directors of the Company with effect from April 4, 2022, 

April 26, 2022, July 1, 2022 and November 28, 2022 respectively  and Mr. Pinank Jayant Shah (DIN: 07859798) ceased to be 

as Executive Directors & CEO of the Company with effective from January 01, 2023.  

 

Note 2: Ms. Ritu Kapoor Puri (DIN: 09559548), was appointed as a whole-time director and key managerial personnel of the 

company w.e.f. April 4, 2022, Mr. Akhil Gupta (DIN: 09285050) was appointed as a Non-Executive director of the Company 

w.e.f. April 26, 2022,Mr. Vipin Chaudhary (DIN: 09588893) was appointed as a Non-Executive director of the Company w.e.f. 

July 01, 2022, Mr. Akshay Kumar Tiwary (DIN: 00366348) was appointed as a Non-Executive director of the Company w.e.f. 

November 28, 2022 and Mr. Sanjeev Kashyap (DIN: 03405178) appointed as a Whole time Director & CEO of the Company 

w.e.f January 01, 2023. 

 

*Includes directorship(s) held in foreign companies & private limited companies and Companies under section 8 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

 

**Only memberships of the Audit Committee / Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee in various public limited companies and 

chairmanship of the Audit Committee / Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee in various equity listed limited companies 

excluding High Value Debt Listed Entity, as per Regulation 26 of the SEBI LODR. The Company being ‘High Value Debt 

Listed Entity’, the membership and chairmanship of Audit Committee and Stakeholder Relationship Committee in the 

Company have not been considered, in terms of Regulation 26(1) of Listing Regulations. 

 

***Only debt securities of these companies are listed on NSE & BSE. 

 

The Board do hereby confirms that all the present Independent Directors of the Company fulfill the 

conditions specified in the SEBI LODR and are independent of the management of the Company. 

 

The Board had accepted all recommendations of committees of the Board which are mandatorily 

required, during the financial year 2022-23. 

 

During FY2022-23, 1 (one) meeting of the Independent Directors was held on March 10, 2023 

where in all the Independent Directors attended the meeting. The Independent Directors inter-alia, 

reviewed the performance of the Non-Independent Directors, Board as a whole, taking into account 

the views of Executive Director and Non- Executive Directors. 

Responsibility, 

Stakeholder 

Management, 

Operations and 

Process 

Optimization 

5 Brig. Labh Singh 

Sitara (Retd.)   

(DIN: 01724648) 

Non- 

Executive

-

Independe

nt 

Director 

Business Strategy, 

Risk Management, 

Treasury, 

Marketing, 

Corporate 

Governance, 

Corporate 

Social 

Responsibility, 

Stakeholder 

Management, 

Operations and 

Process 

Optimization 

NIL NA 0 0 NIL NIL 

6 Dr. Narendra 

Damodar Jadhav  

(DIN:02435444) 

Non- 

Executive

-

Independe

nt 

Director 

Risk Management, 

Corporate 

Governance, 

Operations and 

Process 

Optimization 

1. Jain 

Irrigation 

Systems 

Limited 

 

 

2. Tata 

Teleservices 

(Maharashtra) 

Limited 

 

 

3. Dhani 

Services 

Limited 

 

 

Non 

Executive 

Independent 

Director 

 

 

Non 

Executive 

Independent 

Director 

 

 

Non 

Executive 

Independent 

Director 

 

3 2 8 3 



 

 

 

 

None of the Directors are related inter-se. 

 

None of the Non-Executive Directors held any equity share and/or convertible security of the 

Company during the financial year ended March 31, 2023. 

 

The Board periodically reviews the compliance reports of all laws applicable to the Company. 

During FY 2022-23, information as mentioned in Part A of Schedule II of the SEBI Listing 

Regulations, has been placed before the Board for its consideration. 

 

The Company has familiarization programme for Independent Directors with regard to their roles, 

responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, the business 

model of the Company etc. The familiarization programme along with details of the same imparted 

to the Independent Directors during the year are available on the website of the Company at 

https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/policies/DLSL-Board-Familarisation-Programme.pdf 

 

(B) Number and Dates of Board Meetings held, attendance of Directors thereat and at the last 

AGM held 

 

The Board meetings of the Company are held in a highly professional manner, after giving proper 

notice, Board papers, agenda and other explanatory notes / relevant information to each of the 

directors of the Company, well in advance. At least one meeting is held in every quarter, to review 

the quarterly performance and the financial results of the Company. 

 

Senior management including the CFO was invited to attend the board meetings so as to provide 

additional inputs on the items being discussed by the Board. At the board meetings, the Executive 

Directors and senior management make presentations on various matters including the financial 

results, operations related issues, risk management, the economic and regulatory environment, 

compliance, investors’ perceptions etc. 

 

6 (Six) Board Meetings were held during the year under review and the gap between two meetings 

did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. The said meetings were held on April 4, 2022, May 

30, 2022, August 12, 2022, November 11, 2022, January 01, 2023 and February 10, 2023. The 

necessary quorum was present for all the meetings. 

 

The last Annual General Meeting of the Company was held on September 29, 2022. 

 

Attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings held during the FY 2022-23 and at the last Annual 

General Meeting are as under: 

 

*During the FY 2022-23, Ms. Preetinder Virk (DIN: 02398827), Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal (DIN: 02698115), Mr. Nafees 

Ahmed (DIN: 03496241), Mr. Vipin Chaudhary (DIN: 09588893), ceased to be Non-Executive Directors of the Company 

with effect from April 4, 2022, April 26, 2022, July 1, 2022 and November 28, 2022 respectively  and Mr. Pinank Jayant 

Sr. 

no. 

Name of the Director No. of Board 

meetings 

attended 

Attendance 

at the last 

AGM 

1. Mr. Labh Singh Sitara (DIN: 01724648) 6 Yes 

2. Dr. Narendra Damodar Jadhav (DIN:02435444) 6 No 

3. Ms. Ritu Kapoor Puri (DIN:09559548)
#
 6 Yes 

4. Mr. Pinank Jayant Shah (DIN: 07859798)*  4 No 

5. Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal (DIN: 02698115)* 1 No 

6. Mr. Pritender Virk (DIN:02398827)* - No 

7. Mr. Akhil Gupta (DIN:09285050)
#
 5 Yes 

8. Mr. Vipin Chaudhary (DIN: 09588893)* 2 Yes 

9. Mr. Akshay Kumar Tiwary (DIN:00366348)
#
 2 No 

10. Mr. Sanjeev Kashyap (DIN:03405178)
#
 2 No 

11. Mr. Nafees Ahmed (DIN:03496241)* 0 No 

https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/policies/DLSL-Board-Familarisation-Programme.pdf


 

 

Shah (DIN: 07859798) ceased to be as Whole time Director & CEO of the Company with effective from January 01, 2023. 

 

#During the FY 2022-23, Ms. Ritu Kapoor Puri (DIN: 09559548), was appointed as a whole-time director and key 

managerial personnel of the company w.e.f. April 4, 2022, Mr. Akhil Gupta (DIN: 09285050) was appointed as a Non-

Executive director of the Company w.e.f. April 26, 2022,Mr. Vipin Chaudhary (DIN: 09588893) was appointed as a Non-

Executive director of the Company w.e.f. July 01, 2022, Mr. Akshay Kumar Tiwary (DIN: 00366348) was appointed as a 

Non-Executive director of the Company w.e.f. November 28, 2022 and Mr. Sanjeev Kashyap (DIN: 03405178) appointed 

as a Whole time Director & CEO of the Company w.e.f January 01, 2023. 
 

2. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

 

The Board has constituted various Committees to take informed decisions in the best interest of the 

Company. These Committees monitor the activities falling within their terms of reference. Further, 

terms of reference were revised to align with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, SEBI LODR 

and RBI Act. 

 

The role and the composition of these Committees including number of meetings held during the 

financial year and participation of the members at the meetings of the committees, during the year 

are as under: 

 

(A) Audit Committee Composition 

 

Composition  

 

The Audit Committee comprises of three members, namely, Brig. Labh Singh Sitara (Retd.) 

(Independent Director) as the Chairman and Dr. Narendra Damodar Jadhav (Independent Director) 

and Mr. Sanjeev Kashyap (Executive Director) as members, as other two members. Further, Mr. 

Rajeev Lochan Agrawal and Ms. Sargam Kataria shall be permanent invitees and Mr. Manish 

Rustagi shall act as the Secretary to the Audit Committee. 

  

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee 

 

To oversee the financial reporting process and disclosure of financial information; 

 

 To oversee the financial reporting process and disclosure of financial information; 

 To review with management, annual financial statements and ensure their accuracy and 

correctness before submission to the Board; 

 To review with management and internal auditors, the adequacy of internal control systems, 

approving the internal audit plans/reports and reviewing the efficacy of their function, 

discussion and review of periodic audit reports including findings of internal investigations; 

 To recommend the appointment of the auditors and their remuneration; 

 To review and approve required provisions to be maintained as per IRAC norms and write 

off decisions and regulatory requirements on Balance Sheet Disclosures; 

 To hold discussions with the Auditors; 

 Review and monitoring of the auditor’ independence and performance and effectiveness of 

the audit process; 

 Examination of the auditor’ report on financial statements of the Company (in addition to 

the examination of the financial statements) before submission to the Board; 

 Approval of any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related 

parties; 

 Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 

 Valuation of undertakings and assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary; 

 Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters as and 

when such funds are raised and also reviewing the utilization of the funds so raised for 

purposes other than those stated in the relevant offer document, if any, and making 

appropriate recommendations to the Board in this regard; 

 Review and monitoring of the performance of the statutory auditors and effectiveness of the 

audit process; 

 To hold post audit discussions with the auditors to ascertain any area of concern; 

 To review the whistle blower mechanism; and 



 

 

 

 Approval to the appointment of the Chief Financial Officer after assessing the qualifications 

, experience and background etc. of the candidate. 

 Review of information system audit of the internal systems and processes to access the 

operational risks faced by the Company and also ensures that the information system audit 

of the internal systems and processes is conducted periodically. 

 

Meetings and Attendance during the year 

 

During the financial year ended March 31, 2023 the Committee met four times. The dates of the 

meetings being May 30, 2022, August 12, 2022, November 11, 2022 and February 10, 2023. 

 

Name of the Member(s) Category No. of Meetings 

Held Attended 

Brig. Labh Singh Sitara (Retd.) Chairman, Non- Executive 

Independent Director 

4 4 

Dr. Narendra Damodar Jadhav Member, Non- Executive Independent 

Director 

4 4 

Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal
$
 Member, Non- Executive Director 4 0 

Mr. Akhil Gupta
#
 Member, Non- Executive Director 4 3 

Mr. Sanjeev Kashyap
#
 Member, Executive Director  4 1 

$
Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal had ceased to be the member of the Committee w.e.f. April 26, 2022. 

#
 Mr. Akhil Gupta and Mr. Sanjeev Kashyap were appointed as the members of the Committee w.e.f April 26, 

2022 and January 01, 2023 respectively.  

 

(B) Nomination & Remuneration Committee Composition 

 

Composition  

 

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprises of three members, namely, Brig. Labh 

Singh Sitara (Retd.) (Independent Director) as the Chairman, and Dr. Narendra Damodar Jadhav 

(Independent Director) and Mr. Akshay Kumar Tiwary, Non-Executive Director, as other two 

members. 

 

Terms of reference 

 

The terms of reference of Nomination & Remuneration Committee, inter-alia, include: 

 

 To ensure ‘fit and proper’ status of all the directors on a continuing basis; 

 To identify and advice Board in the matter of appointment of new Directors and senior 

management personnel’s; 

 To recommend to the Board, appointment, removal and compensation terms of the 

Executive Directors; 

 To assist the Board in determining and implementing the Company’s Policy on the 

remuneration of Executive Directors; and 

 To review the evaluation of director’s performance. 

 

Meetings and Attendance during the year 

 

During the financial year ended March 31, 2023 the Committee met Seven times. The dates of the 

meetings being April 04, 2022, April 26, 2022, July 01, 2022, August 11, 2022, August 28, 2022, 

January 01, 2023 and March 06, 2023. 

 

The attendance of Committee members in these meetings is as under: 

 

Name of the Member(s) Category No. of Meetings 

Held Attended 

Brig. Labh Singh Sitara 

(Retd.) 

Chairman, Non- Executive/ 

Independent Director 

7 7 



 

 

Dr. Narendra Damodar Jadhav Member, Non- Executive/ Independent 

Director 

7 7 

Mr. Nafees Ahmed 
$
 Member, Non- Executive Director 7 1 

Mr. Vipin Chaudhary
#
 Member, Non- Executive Director 7 1 

Mr. Akshay Kumar Tiwary
^ 

Member, Non- Executive Director 7 2 
$
Mr. Nafees Ahmed ceased to the member of the committee w.e.f. July 01, 2022  

#
Mr. Vipin Chaudhary was appointed as the member of the Committee w.e.f July 01, 2022 and ceased to be the 

member of the Committee w.e.f November 28, 2022. 
^
 Mr. Akshay Kumar Tiwary was appointed as the member of the committee w.e.f. July 01, 2022. 

 

Policy for selection and appointment of Directors 

 

The (N&R Committee) has adopted a charter which, inter alia, deals with the manner of selection of 

the Board of Directors, senior management and their compensation. This Policy is accordingly 

derived from the said Charter. 

 

a. The incumbent for the positions of Directors/KMP and/or at senior management, shall be the 

persons of high integrity, possesses relevant expertise, experience and leadership qualities, 

required for the position.  

b. The Directors shall be of high integrity, with relevant expertise and experience so as to have 

the diverse Board with Directors having expertise in the fields of finance, banking, 

regulatory, taxation, law, governance and general management. 

c. In case of appointment of Independent Directors, the independent nature of the proposed 

appointee vis-a-vis the Company, shall be ensured. 

d. The N&R Committee shall consider qualification, experience, expertise of the incumbent, 

and shall also ensure that such other criteria with regard to age and other qualification etc., 

as laid down under the Companies Act, 2013 or other applicable laws are fulfilled, before 

recommending to the Board, for their appointment as Directors. 

e. In case of re-appointment, the Board shall take into consideration, the performance 

evaluation of the Director and his engagement level. 

 

Evaluation of the Board and Directors 

 

The Independent Directors play a key role in the decision-making process of the Board as they 

approve the overall strategy of the Company and oversee performance of the management. The 

Independent Directors are committed to act in the best interest of the Company and its stakeholders. 

The Independent Directors bring a wide range of experience, knowledge and judgment. Their wide 

knowledge of both, their field of expertise and boardroom practices brings in varied, unbiased, 

independent and experienced outlook. All Independent Directors have committed and allocated 

sufficient time to perform their duties effectively. All the Independent Directors of the Company 

have confirmed that they have registered themselves in the databank created for Independent 

Directors, well within the stipulated time frame. 

 

The performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors is based on various factors which 

includes participation and contribution by a director, commitment, effective deployment of 

knowledge and expertise, integrity and maintenance of confidentiality and independence of behavior 

and judgment. 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Board reassessed the framework, 

methodology and criteria for evaluating the performance of the Board as a whole, including Board 

committee(s), as well as performance of each director(s)/Chairman. The existing parameters 

includes effectiveness of the Board and its committees, decision making process, Directors/ 

members participation, governance, independence, quality and content of agenda papers, team work, 

frequency of meetings, discussions at meetings, corporate culture, contribution, role of the Chairman 

and management of conflict of interest. On the basis of these parameters, the NRC had reviewed at 

length the performance of each director individually and expressed satisfaction on the process of 

evaluation and the performance of each Director. The performance evaluation of the Board as a 

whole and its committees as well as the performance of each director individually, including the 

Chairman was carried out by the entire Board of Directors. The performance evaluation of the 

Chairman, Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors was carried out by the Independent 



 

 

 

Directors in their meeting held on March 10, 2023. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with 

the evaluation process. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(C) Stakeholders Relationship Committee Composition 

 

Composition  

 

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprises of 3 members, namely, Mr. Akshay Kumar 

Tiwary, Non-Executive Director as the Chairman, and Brig. Labh Singh Sitara (Retd.), Independent 

Director and Ms. Sargam Kataria, Non-Executive Director, as other two members. 

 

Terms of Reference 

 To approve requests for share transfers and transmissions. 

 To approve the requests pertaining to remat of shares/sub-division/consolidation/issue of 

renewed and duplicate share certificates etc. 

 To oversee all matters encompassing the shareholders’ / investors’ related issues. 

 Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the Company, including complaints 

related to transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of 

declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.   

 Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.   

 Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various 

services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.  

 Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the 

quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual 

reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the Company. 

 

Meetings and Attendance during the year 

 

During the financial year ended March 31, 2023 the Committee met four times. The dates of the 

meetings being May 29, 2022, August 11, 2022, November 10, 2022 and February 09, 2023. 

 

The attendance of Committee members in these meetings is as under: 

 

Name of the Member(s) Category No. of Meetings 

Held Attended 

Mr. Akshay Kumar Tiwary
^
 Chairman, Non- Executive 4 1 

Brig. Labh Singh Sitara (Retd.)
$
 Member, Non-Executive Director 4 4 

Ms. Preetinder Virk
#
 Member, Non- Executive/ Independent 

Director 

4 0 

Mr. Nafees Ahmed
*
 Member, Non- Executive/ Independent 

Director 

4 1 

Ms. Ritu Kapoor Puri
@

 Member, Executive Director 4 4 

Mr. Vipin Chaudhary** Member, Non- Executive Director 4 2 
#
Ms. Preetinder Virk ceased to be the member of the Committee w.e.f. April 04, 2022. 

@
Ms. Ritu Kapoor Puri was appointed as member of the company w.e.f April 04, 2022. 

*
Mr. Nafees Ahmed ceased to the member of the committee w.e.f. July 01, 2022. 

**Mr. Vipin Chaudhary was appointed as the member of the Committee w.e.f July 01, 2022 and ceased to be 

the member of the Committee w.e.f November 28, 2022.  

^Mr. Akshay Kumar Tiwary was appointed as member w.e.f 28 November, 2022 and Chairman w.e.f. 01 

January, 2023. 
$
Brig. Labh Singh Sitara (Retd.) ceased to be Chairman and continued as member w.e.f. 01 January, 2023. 

 

 

Name and designation of the Compliance Officer: Mr. Manish Rustagi, Company Secretary is the 



 

 

Compliance Officer pursuant to Regulation 6(1) of SEBI Listing Regulations. 

i. During FY 2022-23, no complaints were received from the Equity Shareholders of the 

Company. 

ii. Details of queries / complaints received and resolved pertaining to Non-Convertible 

Debentures of the Company during the year 2022-23:- 

 

(D) Integrated Risk Management Committee Composition 

 

Composition 

 

The Risk Management Committee comprises of seven members, namely, Mr. Akshay Kumar 

Tiwary, Non-Executive Director as the Chairman, Brig. Labh Singh Sitara (Retd.), Mr. Sanjeev 

Kashyap, Ms. Sargam Kataria, Mr. Amit Kindo, Mr. Rajeev Lochan Agrawal and Mr. Amit Mittal, 

as other members. 

 

Terms of reference of the Integrated Risk Management Committee 

 

 Approve the Credit/Operation Policy and its review / modification from time to time. 

 Review of Customer complaints received by Regulators, Courts, Legal body or internal 

complaints. 

 Review of Grievance Redressal Mechanism and Customers Services. 

 Review of applicable regulatory requirements. 

 Approve all the functional policies of the Company. 

 Review of Branch Audit Report/Concurrent Audit Report of Treasury. 

 Review Compliances of lapses. 

 Place appropriate mechanism in the system to cater Fraud while dealing with 

customers/approval  

of loans etc. 

 Review of profile of the high loan Customers and periodical review of the same. 

 Review of implementation of FPCs, KYC and PMLA guidelines. 

 Define loan sanctioning authorities for various types/values of loans. 

 Any other matter involving Risk to the asset /business of the Company. 

 Evaluation of the risk management systems (in addition to the internal control systems). 

 

During the financial year ended March 31, 2023 the Committee met Twelve times. The dates of the 

meetings being  May 09, 2022, June 30, 2022, August 26, 2022, September 26, 2022, October 28, 

2022, November 28, 2022, December 20, 2022, January 15, 2023, January 30, 2023, February 11, 

2023, March 21, 2023 and March 31, 2023: 

Sl. Particulars Opening Received Disposed Pending 

No.      

1 Legal Cases / Cases before Consumer 

Forums 

0 0 0 0 

2 Letters from SEBI / Stock Exchange. 0 7 7 0 

3 Status of applications lodged for public 

issue(s) 

0 0 0 0 

4 Non-receipt of Interest/Redemption 0 158 158 0 

5 Non-receipt of annual report 0 0 0 0 

6 Non-receipt of Refund order 0 0 0 0 

7 Non-credit/receipt of NCDs in demat 

account 

0 0 0 0 

8 Non-receipt of securities after transfer 0 3 3 0 

 Total 0 168 168 0 



 

 

 

$
Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal ceased to be the Chairman of the committee w.e.f. April 26, 2022. 

^
Mr. Akhil Gupta was appointed as Chairman of the committee w.e.f. April 26, 2022 and ceased to be the 

Chairman of the committee w.e.f. January 01, 2023. 
**

Mr. Nikhil Chari was appointed as member of the committee w.e.f. July 01, 2022 and ceased to be the 

member of the committee w.e.f. January 01, 2023. 
#
Mr. Akshay Kumar Tiwary was appointed as Chairman of the committee w.e.f. January 01, 2023. 

*
Mr. Amit Ajit Gandhi, Mr. Mahesh Arora, Mr. Manish Rustagi ceased to be the members of the committee 

w.e.f. January 01, 2023. 
##

Brig. Labh Singh Sitara (Retd.), Ms. Ritu Kapoor Puri, Mr. Amit Kindo, Mr. Rajeev Lochan Agrawal and 

Mr. Sumit Garg were appointed as members of the committee w.e.f January 01, 2023. 

 

(E) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee Composition 

 

Composition 

 

The CSR Committee comprises of three members, namely, Mr. Akshay Kumar Tiwary, Non-

Executive Director, as the Chairman, Brig. Labh Singh Sitara (Retd.), Independent Director and Ms. 

Sargam Kataria, Non-Executive Director, as other two members. 

 

The Terms of reference of the CSR Committee inter-alia, include: 

 

 To recommend to the Board, the CSR activity to be undertaken by the Company; 

 To approve the expenditure to be incurred on the CSR activity; 

 To oversee and review the effective implementation of the CSR activity; and 

 To ensure compliance of all related applicable regulatory requirements. 

 

Meetings and Attendance during the year 

 

During the financial year ended March 31, 2023 the Committee met once. The date of the meeting 

being August 05, 2022. 

 

Name of  

the Member(s) 

Category No. of Meetings 

Held Attended 

Brig. Labh Singh Sitara 

(Retd.), Member$ 

Non- Executive/ Independent Director 1 1 

Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal, 

Member* 

Non- Executive Director 1 0 

Mr. Pinank Jayant Shah, 

Member
##

 

Executive Director 1 1 

Ms. Preetinder Virk, 

Member
 #
 

Non- Executive Director 1 0 

Mr. Akhil Gupta, Member** Non- Executive Director 1 1 

Ms. Ritu Kapoor Puri, Executive Director 1 1 

Name of the Member(s) Category No. of Meetings 

Held Attended 

Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal
$
 Member, Non-Executive Director 12 0 

Mr. Amit Ajit Gandhi
*
 Member, Non-Executive Director 12 7 

Mr. Sanjeev Kashyap Member, Executive Director  12 12 

Mr. Mahesh Arora
*
 Member 12 7 

Mr. Manish Rustagi
*
 Member 12 7 

Mr. Akhil Gupta
^
 Member, Non-Executive Director 12 7 

Mr. Nikhil Chari
**

 Member 12 5 

Mr. Akshay Kumar Tiwary
#
 Chairman, Non-Executive Director 12 5 

Brig. Labh Singh Sitara (Retd.)
##

 Member, Non-Executive Director 12 5 

Ms. Ritu Kapoor Puri
##

 Member, Executive Director 12 5 

Mr. Amit Kindo
##

 Member 12 5 

Mr. Rajeev Lochan Agrawal
##

 Member 12 5 

Mr. Sumit Garg
##

 Member 12 5 



 

 

Member
@

 

Mr. Akshay Kumar Tiwary, 

Chairman^ 

Non- Executive Director 1 0 

#
Ms. Preetinder Virk ceased to be the member of the Committee w.e.f. April 04, 2022. 

@
Ms. Ritu Kapoor Puri was appointed as member of the company w.e.f April 04, 2022. 

*Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal ceased to be the member of the committee w.e.f. April 26, 2022. 

**Mr. Akhil Gupta was appointed as member of the committee w.e.f. April 26, 2022 and ceased to be the 

member of the committee w.e.f. January 01, 2023. 
##

Mr. Pinank Jayant Shah ceased to be the member of the committee w.e.f. January 01, 2023. 

^Mr. Akshay Kumar Tiwary was appointed Chairman of the committee w.e.f. 01 January, 2023. 
$
Brig. Labh Singh Sitara (Retd.) ceased to be Chairman and continued as member w.e.f. 01 January, 2023. 

 

Note: There being no CSR contribution applicable for FY 2022-23, CSR Committee did not met 

again during FY 2022-23. 

 

4. Director’s Remuneration: 

 

(a)  Non-Executive Directors: 
 

During the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023, the Non- Executive Independent Directors have 

been paid, sitting fees for attending the Board meetings of the Company, and profit linked incentives 

in term of the shareholders authorization, the details of which are available on the website of the 

Company at    https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/policies/Form_MGT_7_DLSL_2023_w.pdf. 

 

The Non-Executive Directors of the Company do not have any pecuniary relationships or 

transactions with the Company or its directors, senior management, subsidiary or associate 

companies, other than in the normal course of business. 

 

(b) Remuneration paid to Executive Directors and CEO 
 

Details of remuneration paid to the Executive director(s) during the year under review are provided 

in the Annual Return as on March 31, 2023, which is available on the Company’s website at 

https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/policies/Form_MGT_7_DLSL_2023_w.pdf. 

 

5. General Body Meetings 

(A) Location and time of last three Annual General Meetings (AGMs) and number of 

special resolutions passed thereat: 

 

Year Meeting Location Date Time Number of special 

resolutions passed 

2019-20 26th AGM M-62 & 63, First Floor, 

Connaught Place, New Delhi - 

110001 

September 23, 

2020 

3.00 P.M. One 

 

2021-22 27th AGM M-62 & 63, First Floor, 

Connaught Place, New Delhi - 

110001 

August 13, 2021 5.30 P.M. Two 

2022-23 28
th
 AGM 1/1E, First Floor, East Patel 

Nagar, New Delhi, West Delhi 

-110008 

September 29, 

2022 

11:30 A.M. Four 

 

(B) Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”): 

 

EGM were held on: 

 

1. May 30, 2022 at 9:30 A.M at registered office 1/1E, First Floor, East Patel Nagar, New 

Delhi, West Delhi -110008 for waiver of excess managerial remuneration paid to Mr. 

Pinank Jayant shah, Whole-Time Director, (DIN: 07859798). 

2. July 02, 2022 at 4:30 P.M at registered office 1/1E, First Floor, East Patel Nagar, New 

Delhi, West Delhi -110008 for Appointment of Ms. Ritu Kapoor Puri (DIN: 09559548) 

https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/policies/Form_MGT_7_DLSL_2023_w.pdf
https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/policies/Form_MGT_7_DLSL_2023_w.pdf


 

 

 

as Whole-Time Director and Key Managerial Personnel designated as Executive 

Director, Mr. Akhil Gupta (DIN: 09285050) and Mr. Vipin Chaudhary (DIN: 

09588893) as Non-Executive Directors of the Company. 

3. February 20, 2023 at 2:30 P.M at registered office 1/1E, First Floor, East Patel Nagar, 

New Delhi, West Delhi -110008 for Appointment Mr. Sanjeev Kashyap (DIN: 

03405178) as Whole-Time Director and Key Managerial Personnel designated as 

Executive Director and Mr. Akshay Kumar Tiwary (DIN: 00366348) as Non-Executive 

Director of the Company. 

 

(C) Postal Ballot during the FY 2022-23: 

 

During the year 2022-23, no resolution was passed by the Company through Postal Ballot. No 

Special Resolution requiring Postal Ballot is being proposed on or before the ensuing AGM of the 

Company. 

 

6. Means of Communication 

 

The Investor Information & Financials sections on the Company’s website 

https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/ keeps the investors updated on material developments in 

the Company by providing key and timely information such as Financial Results, Annual Reports, 

Contact details of persons responsible for investor grievances, etc.  

 

7. General Shareholders Information 

 

(A) Company Registration Details 

 

The Company is registered in the State of Delhi, India. The Corporate Identity Number (CIN) 

allotted to the Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is 

U74899DL1994PLC062407. 

 

(B) Date, Time and Venue of AGM 

 The 29
th
 AGM of the Company would be held on the day, date and time as mentioned in the 

Notice convening the said AGM. 

 

(C) Financial year 

The financial year of the Company is a period of twelve months beginning on 1st April every 

calendar year and ending on 31st March the following calendar year. 

 

(D) Dividend Payment Date:  

           The Company has not declared any dividend during the financial year 2022-23. 

 

(E) Listing on Stock Exchanges 

The Equity Shares of the Company are not listed. Only Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible 

Debentures (NCDs), issued through public issue are list on National Stock Exchange of India 

and BSE Limited: 

 

BSE Limited (BSE) 

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,  

Dalal Street, Mumbai – 400 001 

National Stock Exchange of India Ltd (NSE)  

“Exchange Plaza”, Bandra-Kurla Complex,  

Bandra (E), Mumbai – 400 051 

The listing fees for the financial year 2022-2023 & 2023-24, have been paid to BSE and NSE. 

 

(F) Stock Code/S: NSE: DHANILOANS 

                             BSE: 936498 

  
(G) Market Price data- high, low during each month in last financial year – Not Applicable 

 

(H) Market Price data- high, low during each month in last financial year – Not Applicable 

 

https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/


 

 

(I) Performance of the Company’s share in comparison to broad-based indices –Not Applicable 

 

(J) In case of securities are suspended from trading, the directors report shall explain the 
reason thereof – Not Applicable 

 

(K) Share Transfer System 

In terms of Regulation 40(1) of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended from time to time, 

securities can be transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from April 1, 2019, except 

in case of request received for transmission or transposition of securities. 99.99 % equity shares 

of the Company are in dematerialized form, hence, transfers of equity shares in electronic form 

are effected through the depositories with no involvement of the Company. 

 

Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2023 – Not Applicable (Dhani Loans and 

Services Limited is wholly owned subsidiary of Dhani Services Limited) 

 

(L) Registrar and Transfer Agents 

 

KFin Technologies Limited 

(Formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited)  

Unit: Dhani Loans and Services Limited 

Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Financial District, Nanakramguda, 

Serilingampally Mandal, Hyderabad – 500 032, Telangana 

Toll free number - 1- 800-309-4001 

E-mail: einward.ris@kfintech.com 

Website: www.kfintech.com and https://ris.kfintech.com/ 

 

(ii) Shareholding pattern as on March 31, 2023 

 

Dhani Services Limited holds 6,11,88,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each along with its 6 

nominees holding one equity share each. 

 

(M) Dematerialization of shares and liquidity 

99.99% Equity shares of the Company are in dematerialized form as on March 31, 2023. Under 

the Depository System, the International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) allotted to the 

Company’s equity shares is INE614X01012. 

 

(N) Outstanding global depository receipts or American Depository Receipts or warrants or 

any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity: Not Applicable 

 

(O) Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities: Not Applicable 

          

(P) Plant Locations: Not Applicable 

 

(Q) Address for Correspondence 

 

(i) Registered Office: 

1/1 E, First Floor,  

East Patel Nagar,  

New Delhi-110008, 

Email: support@dhani.com 

Tel: 011-  41052775, Fax: 011- 42137986 

Website: www.dhaniloansandservices.com  
 

(ii) Corporate Office: 

One International Centre (Formerly IFC), 

Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road, 

Mumbai – 400 013 
 

(R) Debenture Trustees 
 

(I) IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited  

  17, R. Kamani Marg, Ballard Estate,  

mailto:einward.ris@kfintech.com
http://www.kfintech.com/
https://ind01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdelivery.kfintech.com%2FPYTWNAHI%3Fid%3D75475%3Dch9VAAUHBVJQGlVVVlRTUlYBAwUNVFYJWloBWVcCVAADBwQAV1BQUwRXAVRSB1FaAgNPFlgJEBZXWQ0WUwpbJlgADFNbQVQGEBQMRQ9QFkxUX14YCFVXCA0JUVMCUApVAFBUBApOWRERFhYLSRoBB1tZRQFLGktTX1ENFVcHWkhSDAgfYmtlMisnLXhZXAEeQQM%3D%26fl%3DWRcRQEEIHkoXDxYfDVMMDENVUAwXAApVFg%3D%3D&data=04%7C01%7Cmurthy.psrch%40kfintech.com%7C73265ccb6c234909a25308d9150fc415%7C1f05907ac524467eb2e103a361253cb5%7C0%7C0%7C637563979732415872%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=%2B0VSplkKwd6ZfiiZNuaSS6P6pZ%2BKPPp221SqjtDC2Ls%3D&reserved=0
http://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/


 

 

 

  Mumbai – 400 001 

  Tel: 022 40807000 

  Fax: 022 66311776 

 
  Email: itsl@idbitrustee.com    

     Website: www.idbitrustee.co   

 

(II) Beacon Trusteeship Limited 

4 C&D, Siddhivinayak Chambers,  

Opp. MIG Cricket Club, Gandhi Nagar, 

      Bandra (East), Mumbai- 400 051 

Telephone No: 022 2655 8759  

Email: contact@beacontrustee.co.in  

Website: www.beacontrustee.co.in 

  

 

(S) Profiles of the directors seeking appointment / re-appointment have been captured in 

the Notice convening the 29
th

 AGM of the Company. 

 

 

(T) Credit Ratings and Change/ Revisions in Credit Ratings for Debt Instruments:- 

 

As on March 31, 2023, Dhani Loans and Services Limited [DLSL] has Long term credit rating of 

BWR A+ (CWD) rating from Brickwork Ratings, IVR A (CWD) rating from Infomerics Valuation 

and Rating & CARE BB+ (Stable) rating from CARE Ratings. 

 

(U) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified 

institutions placement – Not Applicable 

 

(V) Other Disclosures 

 

 

mailto:itsl@idbitrustee.com
http://www.idbitrustee.co/
http://www.beacontrustee.co.in/


 

 

Particulars Details 

Disclosures on materially significant 

related party transactions that may 

have potential conflict with the 

interests of listed entity at large; 

There were no material related party transactions during 

the year that have a conflict with the interest of the 

Company. 

Further, the Company also has a policy on dealing with 

related party transactions which is disclosed on its 

website at 

https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/policies/DLSL-

Policy-on-Related-Party-Transactions.pdf 

 

Details of non - compliance by the 

Company, penalty, strictures 

imposed on the Company by the 

stock exchange, or Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’) or 

any statutory authority on any matter 

related to capital markets, during the 

last three years; 

i. During the financial year 2021-22 the Company 

received notice from NSE and BSE for Non 

Compliance with Regulation 54(2) of SEBI 

(LODR ) Regulations, 2015 – Non-disclosure of 

extent and nature of security created and 

maintained with respect to secured listed NCDs 

in the financial statements and imposed penalty 

of Rs. 24,840 /-. The company paid the said 

penalty to both NSE and BSE. 

ii. During the financial year 2022-23 the Company 

had Clarified its stand w.r.t observations of 

NSE and BSE on few filings under Regulation 

52(7)/(7A), 57(1) and 60(2) of SEBI (LODR) 

Regulations, 2015 and waiting for comments of 

the Stock Exchanges. No fines have been paid 

in the Financial year under review on said 

observations. 

iii. During the financial year 2022-23 the Company 

paid a fine of Rs. 7.60 lacs to RBI for the 

penalty imposed by RBI on the Company w.r.t 

non-compliance of the “Reserve Bank of India 

[Know Your Customer (KYC)] Directions, 

2016”. 

Details of establishment of vigil 

mechanism / whistle blower policy, 

and affirmation that no personnel has 

been denied access to the audit 

committee; 

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy and has 

established necessary Vigil Mechanism for Directors 

and employees to report concerns about unethical 

behaviour. No person has been denied access to the 

Audit Committee.The details of the Whistle Blower 

Policy are available on the website of the Company at 

https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/whistleblower-

policy. 

Details of compliance with 

mandatory requirements and adoption 

of the non- mandatory requirements; 

Details of compliance with non-mandatory and 

mandatory requirements are mentioned in point no. 9 

and 10 of this report respectively. 

Web link where policy for 

determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is 

disclosed; 

The Company has formulated a Policy for determining 

material subsidiaries, pursuant to the provisions of the 

SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, which is available on the web link  
https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/policies-and-

codes. 

 

Web link where policy on dealing 

with related party transactions 

The Company has a policy on dealing with related           

party transactions which is disclosed on its website 

at   

https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/policies/DLSL-

Policy-on-Related-Party-Transactions.pdf  

 

 

https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/policies/DLSL-Policy-on-Related-Party-Transactions.pdf
https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/policies/DLSL-Policy-on-Related-Party-Transactions.pdf
https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/whistleblower-policy
https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/whistleblower-policy
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https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/policies/DLSL-Policy-on-Related-Party-Transactions.pdf
https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/policies/DLSL-Policy-on-Related-Party-Transactions.pdf


 

 

 

Disclosure of commodity price 

risks and commodity hedging 

activities 

Not Applicable 

Details of utilization of funds raised 

through preferential allotment or 

qualified institutional placement as 

specified under Regulation 32 (7A). 

Not Applicable 

Certificate from a company secretary 

in practice that none of the 

directors on the board of the company 

have been debarred or disqualified 

from being appointed or continuing 

as directors of companies by the 

Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs 

or any such statutory authority 

The Company has obtained certificate from Practising 

Company Secretaries that none of the Directors on the 

Board of the Company have been debarred or 

disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 

directors of companies by the Board/ Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. The 

same is reproduced at the end of this report and marked 

as Annexure I. 

Where the board had not accepted 

any recommendation of any 

committee of the board which is 

mandatorily required, in the relevant 

financial year, the same to be 

disclosed along with reasons thereof: 

The Board had accepted all recommendations of 

committees of the Board which are mandatorily 

required, during the financial year 2022-23. 

Total fees for all services paid by the 

listed entity and its subsidiaries 

(excluding GST), for FY 2022-23, on 

a consolidated basis, to the statutory 

auditor and all entities in the network 

firm/network entity of which the 

statutory auditor is a part. 

The particulars of payment of fees to Statutory Auditors 

is given below: 

   

Particulars 
Amount(Rs.) 

 

 (i)    Audit fees 35,00,000 
 

(ii)   Certification Fee                   -    
 

(iii)  Out of pocket expenses                   -    
 

(iv) In connection with the issue 

of securities 

                  

5,00,000     

Total 
                

40,00,000/-   

 

Further, no fees were paid to any entity in the network 

firm/network entity of which the Statutory Auditor is a 

part. 

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual 

Harassment of Women at Workplace 

(Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal) Act, 2013 

Number of 

complaints 

filed during 

the financial 

year. 

Number of 

complaints 

disposed of 

during the 

financial year. 

Number of 

complaints 

pending as 

on end of the 

financial year. 

Nil NA NA 
 

Disclosure by listed entity and its 

subsidiaries of ‘Loans and advances 

in the nature of loans to 

firms/companies in which directors 

are interested by name and amount’ 

All the related party transactions, entered into by the 

Company, during the financial year, were in its 

ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length 

basis. 

Further, Your Directors wish to draw attention of the 

members to Notes to the financial statement which sets 

out related party disclosures. 

Details of material subsidiaries of the 

listed entity; including the date and 

place of incorporation and the name 

and date of appointment of the 

statutory auditors of such 

subsidiaries. 

Name Date & Place 

of 

Incorporation 

Name & Date of 

appointment of 

Auditors 

Indiabulls 

Distribution 

Services 

June 11, 2009 

& New Delhi 

Ajay Sardana & 

Associates & 

September 27, 



 

 

 

Unclaimed Amount 

8. As on March 31, 2023, there was no unpaid amount with respect to the Interest / Dividend 

/Redemption of NCDs of the Company. 

9. Non-compliance of any requirement of corporate governance report of sub-paras above, with 

reasons thereof shall be disclosed: 

The composition of the Board is in compliance with the requirements under the Companies 

Act, 2013 and  the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) relating to Board 

composition which have been made applicable to High Value Debt Listed entities. 

 

10. The corporate governance report shall also disclose the extent to which the discretionary 

requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule II have been adopted. 

 

The Company has adopted the following discretionary requirements as specified in Part E of 

Schedule II 

 

i. Unqualified Financial Statements: 
 

It has been the endeavor of the Company to have its accounting systems and controls to 

ensure complete adherence to the applicable accounting standards and practices obviating 

the possibility of the Auditors qualifying their report on the audited accounts of the 

Company. The Auditors’ Report on the audited annual accounts of the Company for the FY 

2022-23 contains a qualification on which Management response has been adequately 

captured in the Boards’ Report forming part of this Annual Report. 

 
ii. The Internal Auditor of the Company directly reports to Audit Committee of the 

Company: 

Except as set out above, the Company has not adopted the discretionary requirements as   to 

any of the other matters recommended under Part E of Schedule II of Regulation 27(1) of 

SEBI LODR Regulations. 

 

11. The disclosures of the compliance with corporate governance requirements specified in 

regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (a) to (i) of Regulation 62 (1A) of SEBI Listing Regulations 

shall be made in the section on corporate governance of the annual report. 

 

The Company is in compliance with/is in the process of complying with all the mandatory 

requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulation, 2015 which have become applicable to the Company as a High 

Value Debt Listed Entity (“HVDLE”) w.e.f September 7, 2021 on a ‘comply or explain’ basis 

until March 31, 2024. 

 

12. Declaration signed by the CEO and CFO stating that the members of board of directors and 

senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct of board of 

directors and senior management. 

Limited 2019 

Transerv 

Limited 

December 24, 

2010 & 

Mumbai 

 Ajay Sardana & 

Associates & 

September 27, 

2019 
 

Familiarization Program: 

Details of familiarisation programmes imparted to Independent Directors is disclosed on its 

website at  https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/policies/DLSL-Board-Familarisation-

Programme.pdf  

 

Summary Minutes A summary of the minutes of the meetings of the Board 

of the subsidiary companies is placed before the Board 

for noting on a quarterly basis. 

https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/policies/DLSL-Board-Familarisation-Programme.pdf
https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/policies/DLSL-Board-Familarisation-Programme.pdf


 

 

 

 

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees including the Whole Time 

Director & CEO. In addition, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its Non-

Executive Directors and Independent Directors. These Codes are available on the Company’s 

website https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/policies/DLSL-Code-of-Conduct-of-the-

Board-of-Directors-and-Senior-Management-Personnel.pdf.  

 

All the Directors of the Board and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have 

affirmed compliance with the respective Codes. A declaration signed by the CEO and CFO to 

this effect is reproduced at the end of this report and marked as Annexure II. 

 

13. Compliance certificate from either the auditors or practicing company secretaries regarding 

compliance of conditions of corporate governance shall be annexed with the directors’ report. 

 

The Company has obtained compliance certificate from the Practising Company Secretaries 

on corporate governance. The same is reproduced at the end of this report and marked as 

Annexure-III 
 

14. Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account / unclaimed suspense account: Not 

Applicable 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/policies/DLSL-Code-of-Conduct-of-the-Board-of-Directors-and-Senior-Management-Personnel.pdf
https://www.dhaniloansandservices.com/policies/DLSL-Code-of-Conduct-of-the-Board-of-Directors-and-Senior-Management-Personnel.pdf


Annexure I 

CERTIFICATE 

(pursuant to Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015) 

To, 

The Members 

Dhani Loans and Services Limited 

1/1E, First Floor, East Patel Nagar, 

New Delhi West Delhi-110008 

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors 

of Dhani Loans and Services Limited having CIN U74899DL1994PLC062407 and having registered office 

at 1/1E, First Floor, East Patel Nagar, New Delhi West Delhi-110008. (hereinafter referred to as ‘the 

Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance 

with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors 

Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations 

furnished to us by the Company & its officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the 

Company as stated below for the Financial Year ended on 31
st
 March, 2023 have been debarred or disqualified 

from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority: 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of Director DIN Date of 

Appointment in 

Company* 

Date of Cessation 

in the Company 

1. Mr. Pinank Jayant Shah 07859798 14/09/2017 01/01 2023 

2. Ms. Preetinder Virk 02398827 04/12/2018 04/04/2022 

3. Ms. Ritu Kapoor Puri 09559548 04/04/2022 31/07/2023 

4. Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal 02698115 14/09/2017 26/04/2022 

5. Mr. Akhil Gupta 09285050 26/04/2022 05/04/2023 

6. Mr. Nafees  Ahmed 03496241 14/09/2017 01/07/2022 

7. Mr. Vipin Chaudhary 09588893 01/07/2022 28/11/2022 

8. Mr. Akshay Kumar Tiwary 00366348 28/11/2022 - 

9. Mr. Sanjeev Kashyap 03405178 01/01/2023 - 

10. Dr. Narendra Damodar Jadhav 02435444 17/11/2020 - 

11. Brig. Labh Singh Sitara (Retd.) 01724648 14/09/2017 - 

12. Mr. Amit Ajit Gandhi 07606699 05/04/2023 - 

13. Ms. Sargam Kataria 07133394 01/08/2023 - 

*the date of appointment is as per the MCA Portal.

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility 

of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our 

verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 

efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For Sukesh & Co. 

Company Secretaries 

Sd/- 

CS Sukesh Saini 

Membership No.: F11688 

CP No. 12007 

UDIN: F011688E000764737 

Date: August 08, 2023 

Place: Gurgaon 



Annexure II 

CEO/CFO certification pursuant to regulation 17(8) read with Part-B of Schedule-II of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

To 

The Board of Directors 

Dhani Loans and Services Limited 

As required by Regulation 17(8) read with Part-B of Schedule-II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we hereby confirm to the Board that: 

A. We have reviewed financial statements including the cash flow statement for the year ended March 31,

2023 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

(1) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain

statements that might be misleading;

(2) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in

compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the

year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company code of conduct.

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that

we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial

reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or

operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose

to take to rectify these deficiencies.

D. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee that:

(1) There were no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

(2) There were no significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have

been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

(3) There were no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement

therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s

internal control system over financial reporting.

        Sd/-        Sd/- 

Date: May 26, 2023   Sanjeev Kashyap     Rajeev Lochan Agrawal 

Place: Gurugram      Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer 

 



CERTIFICATE FROM PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY ON CORPORATE 

GOVERNANCE 

To 

The Members 

Dhani Loans and Services Limited 

1/1E, First Floor, East Patel Nagar, 
New Delhi -110008  

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Dhani Loans and Services 

Limited (“the Company”), for the year ended March 31, 2023, as prescribed in Regulations 17 to 27, 62(1A) 

and para A, C, D & E of Schedule V of Chapter IV of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and as made 

applicable to the Company effective September 7, 2021 on a comply or explain basis until March 31, 2024. 

We state that the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s 

management and, our examination was limited to the review of procedures and implementation thereof, as 

adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither 

an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and the 

representations made by the Directors and the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with 

the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations for the financial year 

ended March 31, 2023. 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the 

efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For Sukesh & Co. 

Company Secretaries 

Sd/- 

CS Sukesh Saini 

Membership No.: F11688 

CP No. 12007 

UDIN: F011688E000764407 

Date: August 08, 2023 

Place: Gurgaon 

Annexure III



Hem Sandeep & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To The Members of Dhani Loans and Services Limited 
{formerly lndiabulls Consumer Finance Limited) 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Dhani Loans and Services 
Limited {formerly Indiabulls Consumer Finance Limited) (the "Company"), which comprise the 
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the 
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the " Standalone 
Financial Statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our i,iformation and according to the explanations given to us, 
except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph below, the 
qforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 
2013 (the "Act'? in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS'? and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023 and its loss, 
total comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Qualified Opi11io11 

As more fully explained in Note 22(i) to the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements, the 
Company has utilised/ applied an amount of Rs. 72,961.20 lakhs (net of deferred tax) from the 
outstanding balance in the securities premium account for creating a provision for impainnent losses 
on financial instruments instead of debiting the same to the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, 
which is not in strict accordance with the applicable Indian Accounting Standards and other 
applicable regulations. Consequently, the Company's net loss and total comprehensive loss for the 
year ended March 31, 2023 are understated by the qforesaid amount. There is no resultant impact on 
the carrying value of the total equity, assets and liabilities of the Company. 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
("SA"s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of 
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (''ICAP') together with the ethical 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act 
and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained 
by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements. 

Office: D 118, Sake!, New Delhi - 110017 
Phone: +91 1 I 4052 4636 Email: info@hemsandeep.com 
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